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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY 
 
Introduction 
This commentary provides a summary of the Comhairle’s financial performance for the year and how this has supported 
delivery of the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy, as detailed in the 2017/18 Business Plans. It also outline the Comhairle’s 
forward budget strategy and the challenges and risks the Comhairle faces in future years in delivering its objectives for 
the Outer Hebrides. 
 
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar 
The vision of the Outer Hebrides Community Planning Partnership (OHCPP) is to promote and realise the full potential of 
the Outer Hebrides as a prosperous, well-educated and healthy community enjoying a good quality of life, fully realising 
the benefits of our natural environment and cultural values. 
 
The priorities for the OHCPP over the next ten to twenty years are: 

1. The Outer Hebrides retains and attracts people to ensure a sustainable population 

To facilitate this, the OHCPP will focus on the following areas: 

a. There is housing across the islands which meets the needs of all of our people and is affordable to them to 
heat and maintain over the life of their home; 

b. The Outer Hebrides is known as and promoted as an attractive place to visit, live, learn, work and invest 
and has a recognisable brand with strong, positive and consistent promotion; 

c. Our young people are knowledgeable about the opportunities of remaining on the islands to live, work and 
learn; and 

d. Our islands are connected with high quality, affordable and reliable broadband, mobile networks and 
transport connections. 

2. The Outer Hebrides has sustainable economic growth and all our people have access to appropriate 
employment opportunities 

To facilitate this, the OHCPP will focus on the following areas: 

a. The Outer Hebrides is an area of innovation and investment which secures a sustainable and vibrant job 
market with well-paid opportunities; 

b. A skilled workforce for the future that provides opportunities for all our people in the islands; 

c. Support the expansion of access to childcare to enable parents to access employment, training and 
education; and 

d. A vibrant and innovative SME sector which plays a key role in creating sustainable employment and 
economic growth in the Outer Hebrides. 

3. The islands offer attractive opportunities that improves the quality of life, wellbeing and health for all our 
people 

To facilitate this, the OHCPP will focus on the following areas: 

a. All children and young people have the opportunities to access to play and recreational activities, and 
facilities within their communities; 

b. The Outer Hebrides provides a quality natural space where our people can experience, enjoy and value 
opportunities for sport, leisure and recreational activities; 

c. Address factors contributing to social isolation; and 

d. Communities will have access to a range of innovative transport solutions which reduce isolation and 
increase access to services. 

 
Action Plans for each of these priorities were approved by the OHCPP Board on 15 March 2018. As required by the 2015 
Act progress on how these actions are improving outcomes will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 
The OHCPP also agreed to have two locality plans in place for areas identified using statistical data as having poorer 
outcomes than other areas in the Western Isles and Scotland as follows: North Uist and Benbecula and Stornoway West. 
The North Uist and Benbecula Locality Plan has been published and a community led group is working on an action plan.  
Work is ongoing with the communities in Stornoway to build capacity in the areas experiencing poorer outcomes to 
inform the improvements required in a Locality Plan. 
 
Annual Accounts 2017/18 
The Annual Accounts set out the financial statements for Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and its group for the year ended 
31 March 2018. 
 
The requirements governing the format and content of local authorities’ annual accounts are contained in The Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). The 2017/18 Accounts have been prepared in 
accordance with this Code.  
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Group Accounts 
The Code requires group accounts to be prepared where the authority has a material interest in another organisation.  
For the Comhairle this encompasses representation on the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board and Cùram 
is Slàinte nan Eilean Siar, the Western Isles Integration Joint Board (IJB), as well as Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP), an 
arms-length partnership responsible for the management of the design, construction and maintenance of the Western 
Isles Schools Project. 

The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle and Sgoiltean Ùra Investments Ltd, a company limited by shares having 
the Comhairle as its sole shareholder.  The LLP is therefore wholly owned by the Comhairle although existing as a 
separate legal entity. For 2017/18, SULLP did not undertake any financial activities, the company having effectively 
ceased trading when the schools project was completed in 2014. 

The effect of inclusion of these entities in the Group Balance Sheet is to increase the net worth by £2.029m, representing 
the Comhairle’s share of the net assets of these entities. The pension liability of the Valuation Joint Board has been 
offset by the surplus realised by the IJB during the first two years of operation. 

Financial Planning 
The Comhairle is under a legal duty to set a balanced budget and in doing so the must observe proper accounting 
practices and make arrangements which secure best value. 

In line with its financial strategy the Comhairle set a balanced budget for 2017/18. This comprised budgeted expenditure 
of £105.501m funded by £85.392m of General Revenue Grant, £7.783m of Non-domestic Rates, £9.794m of Council Tax 
and £2.532m of balances. 

The Comhairle had a five year Capital Programme that ran from 2013-18, with total capital investment over the 
programme of £105m, made up of a core programme of £42.5m, brought forward projects of £19m and additional 
investment of £43.5m. Capital investment in 2017/18 was £11m, funded from government grant £9.3m, other capital 
grants and contributions of £1.9m. A new programme for 2018-23 was approved by the Comhairle in December 2017. 

Performance 
The Comhairle considers performance against its Business Plans and budgets at each series of meetings. The Chief 
Executive and Directors present a detailed update to each of the Comhairle’s principal committees using information 
drawn from Interplan, the Comhairle’s performance management system. 

The Comhairle produces an annual Public Performance Report which is available on the website.  Services also provide 
more comprehensive Business Plan Progress Reports throughout the year that are made available to the public on its 
website, including the three Statutory Performance Indicators (SPIs) that have been defined by the Accounts 
Commission. 

In 2017/18, the Comhairle’s five departments reported on 252 actions. During the year 88% of these were completed, 6% 
were largely completed and 6% were not completed. A breakdown of actions by Comhairle department is shown in 
Figure 2.   

Figure 2: Business Plan Actions 

The Comhairle also reports on 223 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). For the 2017/18 year 55% of these were on 
target, 14% were close to their target and 31% were off-track.  An analysis of KPIs by Comhairle department is shown in 
Figure 3. 
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Figure 3: Business Plan Key Performance Indicators 

To ensure continuous improvement the Comhairle has adopted the PSIF Self Evaluation model. This supports national 
benchmarking activity including closer comparison through family group benchmarking forums.  This information is made 
available to the public through the Comhairle’s public performance webpage.   

Workforce Planning 
During 2015/16 the Comhairle undertook a major workforce planning exercise as an integral part of its budget strategy.  
The three year plans that were developed identified opportunities for savings whilst supporting the Comhairle’s policy 
position of avoiding, as far as possible, compulsory redundancies. The plans also sought to ensure that succession 
planning was in place and that the Comhairle’s workforce has the right mix of skills to deliver its services.   

The latest strategy includes the implementation of apprenticeships internally through the Comhairle’s own apprenticeship 
programmes and also in the wider community by being an accredited training provider.  The Comhairle has been 
instrumental in the development of bespoke apprenticeship opportunities, exploring new areas and widening 
accreditation opportunities.  Since April 2017, this programme has provided 77 Comhairle based apprenticeships. In 
addition to the apprenticeships supported through Skills Development Scotland, the Comhairle has an additional cohort 
of 27 apprenticeships in highly skilled areas that meet the more specialised workforce planning requirements.  

The chart below demonstrates how the Comhairle’s workforce has changed in recent years: 

Future Workforce Plans form part of the Comhairle’s Forward Strategy. 
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Our Islands Our Future 
The Islands (Scotland) Bill completed its progress through the Scottish Parliament on 30 May 2018 and is on schedule to 
be enacted in early July 2018.   

The Islands (Scotland) Bill contains four key provisions: 

• National Islands Plan – Scottish Ministers will prepare a National Islands Plan to set out their main objectives and
strategy in relation to improving outcomes for island communities.  The focus of the Plan will be on improving and
promoting sustainable economic development, health and wellbeing and community empowerment.  The Plan will
be reviewed annually and one of the successful amendments at Stage 2 of the Bill was an additional requirement
for Ministers to detail steps that they will take where outcomes identified in the Plan have not improved over the
year;

• Duties in relation to Islands Communities/“Island Proofing” - This provision requires “relevant authorities”- which
includes the majority of public bodies - to have regard to island communities in carrying out their functions.  An
island communities impact assessment (ICIA) will require to be prepared in relation to a policy, strategy or service
which that body considers will have a significantly different impact on island communities.    A  similar  duty  is
imposed on Scottish Ministers in relation to legislation;

• Representation of Island Communities – This provision is in two parts: firstly to give protection to the Scottish
Parliamentary constituency of na h-Eileanan an Iar (thus placing it on the same basis as Orkney and Shetland)
and secondly to allow the Local Government Boundary Commission for Scotland to recommend one or two
member wards in areas including islands; and

• Development in the Scottish Marine Area – this provision allows councils to make application to Scottish Ministers
for a scheme to license development adjacent to or within 12 nautical miles of an island.  This reflects the powers
currently available in Orkney and Shetland.

Successful amendments at Stage 3 strengthened the Bill to allow for island proofing of existing policy and legislation, to 
“future proof” legislation by enabling applications for additional powers and for devolution of powers from Scottish 
Government, and to strengthen the islands proofing provisions by introducing the objectivity of a review process of 
decisions not to conduct Islands Communities Impact Assessments.  These amendments will allow the legislation to 
achieve its full potential and enable the Comhairle to work with communities to deliver new models of community 
empowerment and transformational change required to assist in sustainable economic growth. 

The outline narrative of the Deal for the Islands has been drafted and discussed with civil servants from both 
Governments.  The Deal is centred round the themes of innovation and connectivity and work is focused on achieving 
the political commitment from both Governments by the end of the calendar year. 

Financial Performance 
In addition to the performance reports to service committees the Policy and Resources Committee receives quarterly 
reports on the overall financial position of the Comhairle.  

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows a deficit of £3.525m on the provision of services. 
However, this does not reflect the true cost of service provision or the amount required to be funded from government 
grant and taxation. Note 7 gives details of the accounting adjustments required to bring the accounts, prepared under 
proper accounting practice, into line with resources specified by statute. These adjustments generally remove the effect 
of non-cash items such as depreciation and revaluation of assets and replace these with the actual cost of debt 
repayment. Consequently, the General Fund balance has decreased by £1.588m, compared to a planned deficit of 
£2.532m. 

£0,000 

Deficit on Provision of Services in CIE 3,525 

Reversal of Non-Cash Items included in the Service Expenditure Figures 

Asset Adjustments – these are the accounting charges made to the service accounts for depreciation and 
revaluation of the assets they use during the year.  These are not cash payments so do not impact on the 
Comhairle’s funds. 

(7,033) 

Capital Grants and Contributions – these are actual funding contributions to projects being completed under 
the capital programme.  Although these are actual cash income, as they relate to capital expenditure they are to 
be excluded from the revenue figures in the CIE. 

8,437 

Pension Adjustments – accounting convention requires that the costs of pensions are charged to services 
when the pension is earned, not when it is actually paid out after the employee retires.  This is not a real cash 
payment and does not impact on the Comhairle’s Funds. 

(10,066) 

Holiday Accrual – this adjustment relates to payments due to employees for holidays due but not taken during 
the year.  Again, these are not cash payments to staff (as the days are carried forward instead). 

(337) 

Financial Instrument Charge – this relates to the premium paid for repaying a loan before it was due.  Whilst 
the cash was paid out at the time, accounting rules allow the charge to be written off over the period of the 
replacement loan.  As the actual cash transaction has taken place in the past, there is no impact on funds. 

154 

Addition of cash items not included in Service Expenditure Figures 

Loan Charges – the Comhairle’s capital expenditure on property, roads etc. is funded by borrowing from the 
Government.  The asset adjustments mentioned above are the accounting charge for the assets but the loan 
repayments are the actual cash spent in the year which impacts on funds. 

6,908 

Actual Cash Deficit for the year as reported in the Reserves Statement 1,588 
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The tables below show a summary of the main changes that contributed to the final position. During the year budgets 
were supplemented by additional revenue grant of just over £1m, mainly for specific government initiatives, and transfers 
from previously earmarked reserves, the net effect of which was to increase the budgeted revenue deficit by £722k to 
£3.255m. The initial budget included contingencies and other central resources of £1,416k, £1,056k of which remained 
unspent at the end of the year. The management and operation of the loans fund generated savings of £567k, mainly as 
a result of using internal resources to fund capital expenditure and delays in progressing projects in the current and 
previous year. 

With the exception of Health and Social Care and Technical Services, departmental budgets have been managed within 
the Comhairle policy of allowing 1% overspend or 2% underspend to be carried forward into the next financial year. The 
underspend of £535k on Health and Social Care is due to additional residential care income, mainly as a result of the 
backlog of financial assessments of client being cleared. The overspend on Technical Services is due to the winter 
maintenance budget and the majority of this has been funded from balances set aside from previous milder winters. 

Movement – Initial Budget to Actual Outturn £’000 

Initial Planned Deficit 2,532 
Add: Net Additional Resources transferred to Services/Reserves 722 
        Council Tax Income under Budget 50 
        Net Department Overspend 11 
Less: Centrally Held Resources & Contingency not spent (1,141) 
          Debt Repayment and Interest Savings (586) 

Deficit for the Year 1,588 

Department 
Initial 

Budget 
Total 

Budget 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Chief Executive's  3,623 3,554 3,571 17 
Development 4,697 5,739 5,719 (20) 
Education and Children's Services 41,893 43,343 43,463 120 
Finance and Corporate Resources 5,070 4,950 4,801 (149) 
Health and Social Care 18,946 19,553 19,018 (535) 
Technical Services 13,264 12,503 13,081 578 

Departmental Spend 87,493 89,642 89,653 11 

Interest Receivable (229) (229) (249) (20) 
Interest Payable 9,427 9,699 9,418 (281) 
Loan Debt Repayments 7,194 7,194 6,908 (286) 
Contingency 200 85 - (85) 
Centrally Held Resources 1,416 1,056 - (1,056) 
Capital funded from Revenue - 216 216 - 

Total Spend 105,501 107,663 105,946 (1,717) 

General Revenue Grant (85,392) (86,251) (86,251) - 
Non Domestic Rates (7,783) (7,962) (7,962) - 
Council Tax (9,794) (10,195) (10,145) 50 

Total Income (102,969) (104,408) (104,358) 50 

(Surplus)/Deficit 2,532 3,255 1,588 (1,667) 

General Fund Balances  
As a result of the overall deficit of £1.588m, the General Fund balance decreased from £23.2m to £21.6m. Figure 4 
shows how these balances are made up, including the £1.6m already earmarked to support the 2018/19 budget. 

The uncommitted General Fund balance is £8.3m. The Comhairle has a policy of holding a minimum of £3.5m of 
uncommitted balances and the additional funds will be put towards the budget strategy. The policy on balances is 
reviewed as part of the budget setting each year, taking account of the risks and challenges anticipated for the year 
ahead. 
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Figure 4: General Fund Balances 

Figure 5 provides a breakdown of the Comhairle’s committed balances. The biggest changes have been the addition of 
£0.7m to the Western Isles Schools Project Lifecycle Fund and the setting aside of funding towards the Apprenticeship 
Programme;  and the transfer of £2.5m to support the 2017/18 budget and Departments utilising carried forward budgets 
to facilitate projects. 

Figure 5: General Fund Balances 

£’000 £’000 
Budget Strategy  1,601 Modern Apprenticeships 918 
Department Carry Forwards 656 Education Projects/VERs 2,313 
Housing Related Payments 878 Loans Pool 602 
HISTP Match Fund 636 Health & Social Care Funds 455 
WISP Lifecycle Fund 3,521 Miscellaneous 1,725 

Total 13,305 

Capital Expenditure  
The Comhairle spent £9m on capital projects in 2017/18. This was financed through a combination of capital grants, 
revenue, capital funds and internal borrowing as detailed in Note 33 and illustrated in Figure 6. 

Figure 6: Capital Expenditure and Funding 

Major projects completed during the year include the Lewis War Memorial works, Creed Micro Grid, Town Hall window 
refurbishment, Sheildinish Culvert works.  New projects progressed included works at Laxdale and Leverhulme Schools, 
Lewis Residential Care, Outer Hebrides Local Energy Hub, Lochmaddy Pier improvements, Ardseileach Renewables 
project. 
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Performance against Prudential Framework Indicators 
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities allows greater local flexibility for investment decisions that 
are informed and supported by a suite of performance indicators.  The indicators for 2017/18 were approved by the 
Policy and Resources Committee on 8 March 2017.  The indicators are designed to ensure that capital investment is 
prudent, affordable and financially sustainable. The indicators are lower than estimated as a consequence of capital 
expenditure not reaching forecast levels. The key performance indicators are shown in Figure 7. 

1. Capital Expenditure: this indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed investment in capital assets
remains within sustainable limits.

2. Capital Financing Requirement: this indicator measures the underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.
In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, net external
borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the Capital Financing Requirement in the preceding year
plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial years.

3. Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for external borrowing: under the Prudential Code, limits are
required to be set in order to keep borrowing within an affordable range.  These limits are referred to as the
Operational Boundary and the Authorised Limit. The outturn figure reflects the actual sum borrowed which was
contained within both the operational boundary and the authorised limit confirming that the Comhairle’s external
borrowing continues to be undertaken only to support planned capital investment activities.

4. Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream: this is an indicator of affordability and demonstrates the
revenue implications of capital investment decisions by highlighting the proportion of the revenue budget
required to meet the borrowing costs associated with capital spending.

Figure 7: Prudential Indicators 

  Prudential Indicator 
Estimate 
2017/18 

£k 

Outturn 
2017/18 

£k 
General Fund Net Capital Expenditure 5,642 (2,194) 
Capital Financing Requirement 140,292 130,343 

External Debt at 31 March 146,025 142,888 

Operational Boundary 146,025 146,025 

Authorised Limit 146,025 146,025 

General Fund Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 9.17% 8.88% 

More detailed information on capital investments, Treasury Management activities and Prudential Indicators can be 
found within the Treasury Management Strategy and the Annual Treasury Management Report. 

Integrated Joint Board 
The Scheme of Integration for the Western Isles Integration Joint Board (IJB) was approved by the Scottish Government 
on 16 June 2015 and the IJB became responsible for financial and strategic oversight of the services that fall within its 
remit on 1 April 2016. For the Comhairle this encompasses all adult social work and community care services, criminal 
justice and some housing adaptation works. 

The Comhairle’s contribution to the IJB in 2017/18 was £19.9m and this contributed to a surplus of £3m which will be 
transferred to the IJB Reserve. (Note 37 details how copies of the IJB Accounts can be accessed). 

Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet gives details of the assets and liabilities and shows that net assets have increased by £82m over the 
year.  Although expenditure in excess of £9m was incurred on fixed assets, the effect of depreciation and revaluation 
means that the value of these assets has increased by only £5m to £318m. There is a net increase of £5m in working 
capital, as a result of small movements in debtor and creditor balances and an increase in short term investments and 
bank balances. The pension liability has reduced by £70m. 

The pension liability represents the best estimate of the current value of pension benefits that will have to be funded by 
the Comhairle and relates to benefits earned by existing or previous employees up to 31 March 2018.  These benefits 
are expressed in current value terms rather than the cash that will actually have to be paid out.  This is to allow for the 
time value of money, whereby the value of cash now is regarded as higher than cash received in the future. The 
reduction in the level of liability from the previous year reflects the current market conditions, and the financial 
assumptions made by the actuaries. 

Borrowing 
There was no new borrowing undertaken during the year. Internal resources were used to fund capital expenditure and 
loan maturity.  

Financial Outlook, Risks and Plans for the Future 
The Comhairle’s 2018/19 budget is based on a single year settlement from the Scottish Government.  The total budget of 
£107.4m will be funded from Government Grants (£86.0m), Non-Domestic Rates (£7.7m), Council Tax (£10.1m), 
Balances (£1.6m) and planned savings from Service Redesign (£2m).  
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The Service Redesign programme is a key element of the forward budget strategy and will see all services reviewed over 
the remaining term of the council. The Comhairle’s Service Change and Improvement Sub Committee is overseeing the 
individual redesign projects whilst the Budget Board will continue to monitor progress of the programme as a whole. 

Figure 8 shows the range of scenarios that the Comhairle considered when setting its budget in February 2018.  The key 
sensitivities that are likely to have a material impact are pay awards, inflation and levels of government grant.  This 
shows that the implementation of the Service Redesign is essential to bring the Comhairle to a balanced budget at the 
end of its term in office. 

Figure 8: Comhairle Budget Projections 2019-29 

The policy commitments of the Scottish Government, as set out in the SNP manifesto, including the commitment to real 
growth in NHS funding and the focus on educational attainment and the expansion of early years education, suggest that 
local government will continue to be faced with meeting the pressures of inflation, pay awards, service demand and 
legislative changes from reducing financial resources.  

2019/20 is expected to be another one year settlement for local government and the publication of “Scotland’s Fiscal 
Outlook” in May 2018 serves to confirm the assumption that funding for councils will continue to be reduced. As more 
information becomes available the Comhairle will update its forward strategy and consider whether there is a need to 
accelerate or increase savings requirements. 

The Comhairle continues to monitor Brexit and the potential impact on the Comhairle. It is considered that in the short 
term inflationary pressure, on both revenue and capital, is the most likely scenario and this is reflected in the financial 
risks below. Whilst the Comhairle continues to access European funding core services are not dependent on its 
continuation, neither is the Comhairle materially dependent on a European workforce. Consequently no further specific 
provision is made in the accounts in relation to Brexit. 

In setting its budget each year the Comhairle identifies the key financial risks that it faces. The highest risk continues to 
be future reductions in revenue funding. Medium level risks identified are: 

 increasing service demand due to: demographic; high cost packages; mainland placements; and transitions from
children's services;

 implementation of Redesign Programme is delayed or projected savings not realised;

 insufficient landfill diversion leading to increased landfill tax and allowances;

 a rapid increase in general (non-pay) inflation (including as a consequence of Brexit);

 pay award exceeds budgetary provision;

 an increase in bad debts and additional pressure on Economic Development budgets;

 additional costs of Winter Maintenance and essential repairs due to damage;

 overspends in capital projects; and

 changes to the distribution mechanisms, including the floor, for Scottish Local Government.
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Comhairle Budget Projections 2019‐29 
(Including Redesign Savings)
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The Comhairle has continued to demonstrate sound financial management in 2017/18, within the context of reducing 
resources. Uncommitted balances of £4.8m and a strategic plan to address the projected funding deficit mean the 
Comhairle is well placed to address the uncertainty ahead. 

Cllr Roddie Mackay Malcolm Burr Robert Emmott 
Leader Chief Executive Director of Finance & Corporate Resources 

24 September 2018 24 September 2018 24 September 2018 
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MÌNEACHADH BHON LUCHD-STIUIRIDH 

Ro-ràdh 
Tha am mìneachadh seo a’ toirt geàrr-sheanchas air dèanadais ionmhais na Comhairle airson na bliadhna agus mar a 
chuidich seo le lìbhrigeadh Ro-innleachd Chorporra na Comhairle mar a tha mìnichte ann am Planaichean Gnothachais 
2017/18. Tha e cuideachd a’ foillseachadh ro-innleachd bhuidseit na Comhairle agus na dùbhlain is na cunnartan a tha 
ron Chomhairle ann a bhith a’ lìbhrigeadh amasan anns na bliadhnachan ri teachd.  

Comhairle nan Eilean Siar 
‘S e dòchas Compàirteachas Plana Coimhearsnachd Innse Gall (CPCIG) amasan agus comasan na h-Eileanan an Iar a 
bhrosnachadh agus a thuigsinn, mar àite soirbheachail, foghlamaichte, le coimhearsnachdan fallain beartach, a tha a làn 
thuigsinn na buannachdan a tha a’ tighinn bho àrainneachd nàdarra agus luachan cultarail.   

‘S e prìomh amasan an CPCIG thairis air na deich gu fichead bliadhna a tha ri thighinn: 

1. Tha na h-Eileanan an Iar a’ glèidheadh agus a tàladh dhaoine gus dèanamh cinnteach gu bheil an
àireamh-sluaigh seasmhach.

Seallaidh an CPCIG ri na puingean a’ leanas airson seo a dhèanamh comasach:

a. Tha taigheadas ri fhaighinn, a tha a’ coinneachadh feumalachdan an t-sluaigh air feadh nan eilean, le
prìsean reusanta air teas agus cùram an taighe;

b. Tha na h-Eileanan an Iar air aithneachadh mar àite àlainn airson tadhail, fuireach, ionnsachadh,
obrachadh is cuir an sealbh,  agus tha seul aithnichte, le brosnachadh làidir, deimhinneach agus
cunbhalach aig na h-Eileanan.

c. Tha ar daoine òga eòlach air na cothroman a th’ anns na h-Eileanan airson fuireach, obair agus
ionnsachadh, agus;

d. Tha ar n-eileanan ceangailte le bann-leathan, lìon-cheangal airson fònaichean-làimhe agus
ceanglaichean-siubhail a tha buadhmhor, reusanta agus earbsach.

2. Tha fàs eaconamach seasmhach aig na h-Eileanan an Iar agus tha cothrom-inntrigidh aig a h-uile neach
gu cothroman fastaidh.

Seallaidh an CPCIG ri na puingean a’ leanas airson seo a dhèanamh comasach:

a. ‘S e àite le ùr-ghnathachas agus in-ionmhas a th’ anns na h-Eileanan an Iar, le cothroman obrach
tèarainte seasmhach, le deagh chothroman pàighidh.

b. Luchd-obrach sgileil airson an àm ri teachd, a tha a’ cruthachadh chothroman airson a h-uile neach anns
na h-Eileanan.

c. Cuideachadh agus leudachadh cothroman gu cùram-cloinne, airson fastachd, trèanadh agus foghlam a
dhèanamh comasach do phàrantan; agus

d. Roinn soirbheachail, ùr-ghnàthach SME, a tha a’ gabhail pàirt ann a bhith a’ cruthachadh fastachd
seasmhach agus fàs eaconamach anns na h-Eileanan an Iar.

3. Tha na h-eileanan a’ toirt seachad cothroman tarraingeach a tha a’ dèanamh beatha, soirbheas, agus
slàinte dhaoine nas fhèarr.

Seallaidh an CPCIG ri na puingean a’ leanas airson seo a dhèanamh comasach:

a. Tha cothrom aig clann is daoine-òga a bhith a’ cluich, agus tha goireasan sònraichte anns na
coimhearsnachdan aca.

b. Tha na h-Eileanan an Iar a’ toirt seachad àite nàdarra, far am faigh daoine luach agus eòlas air spòrs agus
cur-seachadan.

c. Dèiligeadh ri factaran a tha a’ cur ri aonaranachd shòisealta; agus

d. Gheibh coimhearsnachdan cothrom air freagairtean còmhdhalach ùr-ghnàthach, airson lùghdachadh
aonaranachd agus meudachadh cothroman air seirbheisean.

Chaidh planaichean-gnìomh airson gach amas aontachadh le Bòrd CPCIG air an 15mh là den Mhàirt 2018.  Thèid 
sealltainn ri adhartas gach amas, ann a bhith a’ leasachadh builean gach bliadhna, mar a chaidh iarraidh ann an Achd 
2015.   

Dh’aontaich an CPCIG cuideachd, dà phlàna ionadail a bhith aca, airson na h-àitichean a tha air an ainmeachadh le 
stadastaigean mar àitichean a tha nas bochda a thaobh nam builean aca, an coimeas ri àitichean eile anns na h-
Eileanan an Iar agus Alba, ‘s iad: Uibhist a Tuath, Beinn na Faoghla agus taobh an iar Steòrnabhaigh.   Tha planaichean 
Uibhist a Tuath agus Beinn na Faoghla air am foillseachadh, le buidheann coimhearsnachd ag obair air plana-gnìomh.  
Tha obair fhathast a’ gabhail àite ann an coimhearsnachdan Steòrnabhaigh airson leasachadh agus piseach a thoirt air 
na h-àitichean as bochda, mar a tha am plàna ionadail ag iarraidh. 

Cunntasan Bliadhnail 2017/18 
Tha na Cunntasan Bliadhnail a’ mìneachadh aithrisean ionmhais Chomhairle nan Eilean Siar agus a buidheann gu 
deireadh bliadhna 31 Màrt 2018. 
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Tha na riaghailtean ann an dàimh ri cruth agus susbaint cunntasan bliadhnail ughdarrasan ionadail rin lorg ann an Còd 
Giùlain Cunntasachd Ughdarras Ionadail anns an Rìoghachd Aonaichte (an Còd). Chaidh Cunntasan 2017/18 ullachadh 
a rèir a’ Chòd seo.  

Cunntasan Bhuidhnean 
Tha an Còd ag ainmeachadh gu feum cunntasan bhuidhnean a bhith air an ullachadh far a bheil ùidh chorporra aig an 
ùghdarras ann am buidheann eile. Mar sin tha riochdachadh na Comhairle air Bòrd Co-mheasaidh na Gàidhealtachd ’s 
nan Eilean air a chomharrachadh ann an cunntasan na buidhne agus Bòrd Amalachaidh Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean 
Siar agus na Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP).  `S e compàirteachas aig astar a th’ ann an SULLP le uallach rianachd airson 
dealbhadh, togail agus gleidheadh Pròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean. 

’S e compàirteachas le do-mhaoin cuingealaichte a th’ ann an SULLP, a tha an urra ri dealbhadh, togail, rianadh 
ghoireas agus obair gleidhidh do Phròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean Siar agus tha seo cuideachd air a’ chunntadh sa 
Bhuidheann. ’S e compàirteachas eadar a’ Chomhairle agus In-tasgaidhean Sgoiltean Ùra a th’ anns an LLP, 
companaidh cuingealaichte le earrannan agus a’ Chomhairle a-mhàin mar neach-gleidhidh nan earrannan. Mar sin ’s 
ann leis a’ Chomhairle a tha an LLP ged a tha e stèidhichte gu reachdail mar bhuidheann air leth. Ann an 2017/18, cha 
robh gnìomh ionmhais aig SULLP, oir an uair a chrìochnaich pròiseact nan sgoiltean ann an 2014, thànaig obair na 
buidhne gu ceann. 

Ann a bhith a’ ceangal nam buidhnean sin ann am Bileag Cothromachaidh na Buidhne tha seo a’ toirt £2.029m bhon 
luach iomlan, a’ riochdachadh cuibhreann de so-mhaoin iomlan nam buidhnean sin, gu sònraichte suidheachadh 
peinnsein Co-bhòrd Luachaidh.  Tha do-mhaoin Co-bhòrd an Amalachaidh air a chur fa chomhair an còrr a nochd anns 
a’ chiad dà bhliadhna de dh’obair a’ Bhùird. 

Dealbhadh Ionmhais  
Tha a’ Chomhairle fo dhleastanas laghail buidseat cothromach a shuidheachadh agus ann a bhith a’ dèanamh sin 
feumar aire a ghabhail de ghnàthan iomchaidh cunntasachd agus ullachadh a dhèanamh airson luach as fheàrr a 
chosnadh.  

Ann an co-theacsa an ro-innleachd ionmhais, stèidhich a’ Chomhairle buidseat airson 2017/18. Tha seo a’ gabhail a-
steach cosgais de £105.501m air a mhaoineachadh le £85.392mm de Thabhartas Teachd a-steach Coitcheann, 
£7.783m bho Chìsean Neo-dhachaigheil agus £9.794m bho Chìs Chomhairle agus cùl-mhaoin de £2.532m. 

Tha Prògram Calpa còig bliadhna aig a’ Chomhairle, a’ riuth bho 2013-18, le in-ionmhas iomlan de £105m, air a 
dhèanamh an àrd le bun-phrògram de £42.5m, a thug pròiseactan de £19m air adhart, le barrachd in-ionmhas de 
£43.5m.  Chaidh in-ionmhas calpa de £11m a dhèanamh ann an 2017/18, air a mhaoineachadh bho thabhartas 
riaghaltas de £9.3m, thabhartasan calpa agus cuir-ris eile de £1.9m.  Chaidh program ùr airson 2018-23 aontachadh leis 
a’ Chomhairle san Dùbhlachd 2017. 

Dèanadas 
Bidh a’ Chomhairle a’ beachdachadh air dèanadas mu choinneimh Planaichean Gnothachais agus buidseatan aig gach 
sreath choinneamhan. Bidh an t-Àrd-oifigear agus na Stiùirichean a’ toirt mìneachadh do gach prìomh chomataidh a’ 
cleachdadh fiosrachadh air a tharraing bho Interplan, siostam rianaidh dèanadais na Comhairle.  

Tha a’ Chomhairle ag ullachadh Aithisg Dèanadas Phoblach a tha ri fhaotainn air an làrach-lìn. Tha seirbheisean 
cuideachd ag ullachadh Aithisgean mionaideach air Adhartais Planaichean Gnothachais tron bhliadhna agus gheibh am 
poball cothrom orra seo air an làrach-lìn, a’ gabhail a-steach nan trì Comharran Dèanadais Reachdail a chaidh a 
mhìneachadh le Coimisean nan Cunntasan. 

Ann an 2017/18, dh’aithris còig roinnean na Comhairle air 252 gnìomh. Tron bhliadhna chaidh 88% dhiubh sin a 
choileanadh, 6% an ìre mhath coileanta and 6% nach deach a choileanadh. Tha anailis de na gnìomhan a thaobh 
roinnean na Comhairle rim faicinn air Clàr 2. 

Clàr 2: Gnìomhan Plana Gnothachais  
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Tha a’ Chomhairle cuideachd ag aithis air 223 Prìomh Chomharra Dèanadais. Anns a’ bhliadhna 2017/18 bha 55% 
dhiubh air targaid, 14% faisg air an targaid agus 31% far an targaid. Tha anailis de’n seo a rèir roinn Comhairle rim 
faicinn air Clàr 3.  

Clàr 3: Prìomh Chomharran Dèanadais Planaichean Gnothachais 

Ann a bhith a’ dearbhadh leasachadh leantainneach tha a’ Chomhairle air gabhail ri modal Fèin-mheasaidh PSIF. 
Cuiridh seo ri obair slat-tomhais le coimeas dlùth tro fhòram slat-tomhais buidhnean coltach. Tha am fiosrachadh seo ri 
fhaotainn tro làrach-lìn dèanadas poblach na Comhairle. 

Planadh Obrach 
Ann an 2015/16 chuir a’ Chomhairle eacarsaich mòr, dealbhadh luchd-obrach air dòigh mar phàirt riatanach den ro-
innleachd bhuidseit aice. Sheall na planaichean a mhaireas trì-bliadhna a chaidh a leasachadh, gun robh cothroman ann 
sàbhalaidhean a dhèanamh, fhad ’s a bhathar a’ cur taic ri poileasaidh na Comhairle, mas urrainnear, dìolaidhean 
anabarrach èigneachail a sheachnadh. Tha na planaichean cuideachd a’ sireadh dearbhadh air ullachadh luchd-obrach 
mu choinneimh an àm ri teachd agus gu bheil am measgachadh ceart de sgilean aca gu na seirbheisean a lìbhrigeadh. 

Tha na planaichean as ùra cuideachd a’ toirt sgeama preantasachd gu buil taobh a-staigh sgeama preantas na 
Comhairle fhèin, agus a bharrachd air a sin, anns a’ choimhearsnachd le bhith a’ solar trèanadh gu creideasaichte.  Tha 
a’ Chomhairle air a bhith soirbheachail ann a bhith a’ leasachadh chothroman preantasachd, a’ rannsachadh 
shuidheachaidhean ùra agus a’ toirt seachad cothroman barantachd.  Tha sgeama na Comhairle air fastadh a thoirt gu 
77 luchd-preantas bhon Ghiblean 2017.  A bharrachd air na preantasan a tha a’ faighinn taic bho Leasachadh Sgilean na 
h-Alba, tha buidheann de 27 luchd-preantas aig a’ Chomhairle ann an àrd roinnean a tha a’ coinneachadh feumalachdan
feachd-obrach sònraichte.

Tha an clàr gu h-ìosal a’ sealltainn mar a tha luchd-obrach na Comhairle air a bhith a lùghdachadh sna bliadhnaichean 
bho dheireadh: 

Tha Planaichean luchd-obrach san àm ri teachd mar phàirt de Ro-innleachd Adhartach na Comhairle. 
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Ar n-Eileanan ri Teachd 
Chrìochnaich Bile nan Eilean (Alba) am pròiseas aice tro Phàrlamaid na h-Alba air 30mh latha den Chèitean 2018 agus 
tha dùil gun tèid e a dhearbhadh anns an t-Iuchar 2018.  

Tha ceithir uallaichean aig Bile nan Eilean (Alba): 

 Plana Nàiseanta nan Eilean – Ullaichidh le Ministearan Albannach Plan Nàiseanta nan Eilean a’ mìneachadh am
prìomh rùintean agus ro-innleachd ann an dàimh ri piseach a thoirt air builean do choimhearsnachdan eileanach.
Bidh fòcas a’ Phlana air leasachadh agus brosnachadh a thoirt air leasachadh eaconamach, slàinte agus
soirbheas agus fèin-mhisneachd choimhearsnachdan. Thèid ath-sgrùdadh bhliadhnail air a’ Phlana agus leis an
atharrachadh soirbheachail aig Ìre 2 dhan Bhile chaidh impidh a bharrachd air Ministearan mìneachadh na
ceumannan a ghabhas iad far nach eilear a’ faicinn piseach air builean sa Phlana thairis air a’ bhliadhna;

 Dleastanasan a thaobh Coimhearsnachdan Eileanach/ Dìonadh” – tha an uallach seo air na “h-ùghdarrasan
iomchaidh” - a’ gabhail a-steach a’ mhòr-chuid de bhuidhnean poblach - aire a thoirt do choimhearsnachdan
eileanach ann a bhith a’ coileanadh an gnìomhan. Feumar measadh buaidh air coimhearsnachdan eileanach a
bhith air ullachadh ann an dàimh ri poileasaidh, ro-innleachd no seirbheis far a bheilear den bheachd gum
faodadh sin buaidh glè eadar-dhealaichte a thoirt air coimhearsnachdan eileanach. Tha dleastanas co-fhreagrach
air Ministearan Albannach ann an dàimh ri reachdas;

 Coimhearsnachdan Eileanach air an Riochdachadh -  Tha seo ann an dà phàirt: an tòiseach a dìon roinn-
pàrlamaid na h-Eileanan an Iar (a’ toirt dha an aon bhun-stèidh ri Sealtainn agus Arcaibh) agus anns an dàrna
phàirt, a’ ceadachadh Coimisean Chrìochan Ionadail Alba moladh roinnean le aon no dà Bhall agus tha seo a’
gabhail a-steach eileanan; agus

 Leasachaidhean ann an sgìre Mara na h-Alba – tha seo a’ toirt cead do chomhairlean iarrtas a chur gu
Ministearan Albannach gu sgeama ceadachas airson leasachadh dlùth no taobh a-staigh air 12 mìle mara bho
eilean.  Tha na cumhachdan seo aca ann an Arcaibh agus Sealtainn mar tha.

Thug atharrachaidhean soirbheachail aig Ìre 3 neart don Bhile dìonadh eileanach a chur ri poileasaidhean agus 
reachdas gnàthaichte, a’ dìonadh reachdas ri teachd le bhith a’ ceadachadh iarrtasan airson cumhachdan a ghluasad 
bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba, agus ullachaidhean dìonadh eileanach a neartachadh le bhith a’ toirt a-steach neo-chlaonachd 
air pròiseas ath-sgrùdaidh air co-dhùnaidhean gun Measadh Buaidh Choimhearsnachdan Eileanach a dhèanamh. 
Leigidh na h-atharrachaidhean sin leis an reachdas an làn chomas a choileanadh agus a leigeil leis a’ Chomhairle 
obrachadh le coimhearsnachdan gus modalan ùra de dh’ fhèin-mhisneachd agus bun-atharrachaidh a chur an cèill a 
bhios feumail le bhith a’ toirt fàs seasmhach air an eaconamaidh. 

Chaidh beachdachadh air dreachd geàrr-sheanchas Aonta nan Eilean le seirbheisean catharra gach Riaghaltas. Tha an 
aonta stèidhichte air cuspairean ùr-ghnàthachas, ceangalan teicneolais agus tha fòcas na h-obrach air daingneachadh 
phoilitigeach fhaighinn bhon dà Riaghaltas ro dheireadh na bliadhna.  

Dèanadas Ionmhais 
A thuilleadh air na h-aithisgean dèanadais gu comataidhean seirbheis tha aithisgean ràitheil a’ dol gu Comataidh 
Poileasaidh agus Stòras ag aithris air suidheachadh ionmhais na Comhairle.  

Tha an Aithris Choileanta air Teachd-a-steach agus Cosgais a’ nochdadh còrr de £3.525m air ullachadh sheirbheisean. 
Ach chan eil seo na fhianais air fìor chosgais ullachadh sheirbheisean no air an àireamh a dh’fheumar a thogail bho 
thabhartas riaghaltais agus chìsean. Tha Nota 7 a’ toirt mion-chunntas air atharrachaidhean cunntasachd a tha ri 
dhèanamh airson nan cunntasan, a chaidh ullachadh fo mhodh cunntasachd iomchaidh, a rèir an stòrais air a 
shònrachadh tro reachdas. Tha na h-atharrachaidhean sin a’ toirt air falbh nithean far nach eil airgead dìreach an sàs 
leithid lùghdachadh luach agus ath-luachadh air so-mhaoin agus nan àite thèid fìor chosgais pàigheadh air ais fiachan. 
Leis an sin tha cothromach a’ Mhaoin Choitcheann air meudachadh le £1.588m, ann an coimeas ri còrr suidhichte de 
£2.532m, mar a tha nochdadh ann an Aithris Gluasad a’ Chùl-mhaoin.  

£0,000 

Easbhaidh air Ullachadh Sheirbheisean ann an Teachd-a-steach is Cosgais 3,525 

Tionndadh ann an cuspairean “neo-airgid” a thaobh Cosgaisean Sheirbheisean 

Atharrachaidhean so-mhaoin - atharrachaidhean an cunntasan seirbheisean a thaobh ìsleachadh agus ath-luachadh 
so-mhaoin ga chleachdadh gach bliadhna. Chan ann le airgead a chaidh am pàigheadh agus chan eil buaidh aca air 
maoin na Comhairle 

(7,033) 

Maoin Chalpa agus Tabhartasan - tabhartasan airgead airson pròiseactan crìochnaichte bhon phrògram calpa. Ged a 
’s e teachd-a-steach airgid a tha seo, leis gu bheil iad a buntainn ri cosgaisean chalpa, thèid am fàgail a-mach à 
cosgaisean CIE. 

8,437 

Atharrachaidhean Peinnsean - a thaobh riaghailtean cunntasan, feumaidh cosgaisean peinnsean a dhol mu 
choinneamh seirbheisean nuair a thèid a’ pheinnsean fhaighinn, chan ann nuair a thèid a phàigheadh a-mach. Chan e 
cosgais fìrinneach a tha seo agus chan eil buaidh aige air maoin na Comhairle.  

(10,066) 

Tuarastal Làithean-saora - tha an t-atharrachadh seo a thaobh chosgaisean gu luchd-obrach airson làithean-saora 
nach deach a ghabhail tron bhliadhna. A-rithist chan e cosgaisean fìrinneach a tha seo (tha na làithean-saora air an toirt 
air adhart chun na h-ath-bhliadhna) 

(337) 

Cìs Ionmhais - tha seo a thaobh chosgaisean a bharrachd an cois iasad a phàigheadh air ais tràth. Ged a chaidh an t-
airgead a phàigheadh a-mach aig an àm, tha riaghailtean cunntasan a’ ciallachadh gum faodar an t-suim a phàigheadh 
thairis air an àm san robh an t-iasad againn. Leis gun deach an t-airgead a phàigheadh mu thràth, chan eil buaidh aig 
seo a-nis air maoin na Comhairle. 

154 

Cuspairean “non-cash” nach deach an gabhail bho Chosgaisean Sheirbheisean 

Cìsean Iasaid - cosgaisean calpa na Comhairle air toglaichean, rathaidean msaa air a mhaoineachadh tro iasad bhon 
riaghaltas. ’S iad na h-atharrachaidhean so-mhaoin gu h-àrd, cosgaisean cunntasan ach ’s e pàigheadh air ais nan 
iasadan a’ chosgais a bh’ air buaidh air a’ bhuidseat.  

6,908 

Còrr airson na bliadhna mar a chaidh ainmeachadh ann an Aithris Sàbhalaidhean 1,588 
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Tha na clàran gu h-ìosal a’ sealltainn gèarr-chunntas de na prìomh atharrachaidhean a’ chur ris a cho-dhùnadh 
deireannach.  Chaidh nam buidseatan am foirlionadh le teachd-a-steach a bharrachd, beagan a bharrachd air £1m, a’ 
mhòr-chuid airson iomairtean an Riaghaltais, agus tàr-aiseagan bho stòrasan comharraichte.  Thathar seo air airson 
meudachadh buidseat call teachd-a-steach bho £772k gu £3.255m.  Bhathar planaichean tuiteamais agus stòrasan de 
£1,416k anns a’ chiad buidseat, bha £1,056k nach deach a’ chosg ro deireadh na bliadhna, air fhàgail. A-mach à 
rianachd agus obair maoin nan iasadan bha sàbhaladh de £567k, glè mhòr mar thoradh air a bhith a’ cleachdadh in-
stòrais airson coinneachadh ri cosgais calpa agus dàil a bh’ ann an adhartas le pròiseactan an-uiridh agus am-bliadhna. 

A bharrachd air Slàinte agus Cùram Sòisealta agus Seirbheisean Teicnigeach, chaidh rianachd a dhèanamh air 
buidseatan roinneil bho phoileasaidh na Comhairle a’ gabhail a-steach 1% cosg a bharrachd no 2% fo-chosg airson a 
thoirt air adhart chun ath bhliadhna ionmhais. Bha an £535k fo-chosg ann an Slàinte agus Cùram Sòisealta ri linn teachd 
a-steach a bharrachd bho dachaighean cùram, mar thoradh sa mhòr phàirt air dàil ann an measaidhean ionmhais luchd-
cleachdaidh na seirbheis. Bha an cosgais a bharrachd ann an Seirbheisean Teicnigeach ri linn buidseat glèidheadh
geamhraidh agus chaidh a mhòr-chuid den seo a mhaoineachadh bho buidseat geamhraidhean eile nach robh dona.

Gluasad – Buidseat chun Àireamh Iomlan £’000 

Tùs-chall  2,532 
Tuilleadh: Goireasan Lom a bharrachd gu Seirbheisean/Stòrasan 722 

Teachd-a-steach bho Cìs Comhairle bhon bhuidsead 50 
Tar-chosg air Roinn Lom 11 

Lùghdachadh: 
Goireasan meadhanachd &Tuiteamas nach deach a’ chosg.  

(1,141) 

Ais-phàigheadh Fiachan agus Sàbhaladh Ùidh (586) 

Call nam Bliadhna 1,588 

Roinn 
Buidseat 

Buidseat 
Iomlan 

Àireamh 
iomlan 

Os cionn/ 
(fo) 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Àrd-oifigeir 3,623 3,554 3,571 17 
Leasachadh 4,697 5,739 5,719 (20) 
Foghlam is Seirbheisean Cloinne 41,893 43,343 43,463 120 
Ionmhas agus Seirbheisean Corporra 5,070 4,950 4,801 (149) 
Slàinte is Cùram Shòisealta 18,946 19,553 19,018 (535) 
Seirbheisean Teicnigeach 13,264 12,503 13,081 578 

Cosagis gach Roinn 87,493 89,642 89,653 11 

Riadh ri thoirt a-steach (229) (229) (249) (20) 
Riadh ri phàigheadh 9,427 9,699 9,418 (281) 
Pàigheadh air-ais Fiachan Iasaid 7,194 7,194 6,908 (286) 
Maoin Tuiteamais 200 85 - (85) 
Prìomh Ghoireasan 1,416 1,056 - (1,056) 
Maoin bhon Mhaoin Choitchinn - 216 216 - 

Cosgais Iomlan 105,501 107,663 105,946 (1,717) 

Tabhartas Maoin Choitchinn (85,392) (86,251) (86,251) - 
Cìsean Neo-dhachaigheil (7,783) (7,962) (7,962) - 
Cìs Chomhairle (9,794) (10,195) (10,145) 50 

Teach a-steach Iomlan (102,969) (104,408) (104,358) 50 

(Còrr)/Call 2,532 3,255 1,588 (1,667) 

Cothromachadh a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn 
Mar thoradh dhan a’ chall iomalan de £1.588m, chaidh a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn a’ lùghdachadh bho £23.2m gu £21.6m. 
Tha Clàr 4 a’ sealltainn co-phàirtean a’ mhaoin seo, a’ gabhail a-steach an £1.6m air a chomharrachadh gu taic a 
chumail ri buidseatan 2018/19. 

Tha co-phàirt a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn nach eil air a dhaingneachadh aig £8.3m, an dèidh cunntas a ghabhail air 
poileasaidh na Comhairle gu £3.5m a chumail mar chùl-mhaoin neo-dhaingnichte. Tha a’ Chomhairle a’ dèanamh ath-
sgrùdadh air a poileasaidh a thaobh cùl-mhaoin mar phàirt de stèidheachadh a’ bhuidseat gach bliadhna, a’ gabhail a-
steach nan cunnartan agus nan dùbhlain sa bhliadhna air thoiseach. 
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Clàr 4: Cothromachadh na Maoine Coitchinn 

Tha Clàr 5 a’ mìneachadh far a bheil cùl-mhaoin daingnichte. Tha an t-atharrachadh as motha a’ tighinn bho £0.7m gu 
Maoin Chuairt-beatha Phròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean Siar, agus chaidh maoineachadh a chur gu aon taobh airson an 
Sgeama Preantasachd; chaidh tàr-aiseag de £2.5m a chur, gus taic a thoirt don buidseat 2017/18 agus thug thar-mhaoin 
buidseatan Roinneil airgead airson pròiseactan a dhèanamh comasach. 

Clàr 5: Cothromachadh na Maoine Coitchinn 

£’000 £’000 
Ro-innleachd a’ Bhuidseit  1,601 Preantasachd Ùr-nòsach 918 
Thar-mhaoin Roinneil  656 Pròiseactan Foghlaim/VERs 2,313 
Pàighidhean a thaobh Taigheadais  878 Iasadan  602 
Maoineachadh co-ionnan HISTP 636 Maoin Slàinte & Cùram Sòisealta 455 
Maoin Chuairt-beatha WISP  3,521 Rudan eile  1,725 

Iomlan 13,305 

Cosgais Calpa  
Chosg a’ Chomhairle £9m air pròiseactan calpa ann an 2017/18. Chaidh seo a mhaoineachadh tro mheasgachadh de 
thabhartasan calpa, maoin bliadhnail is calpa agus in-iasadach mìnichte aig nota 33 agus ri fhaicinn aig Clàr 6. 

Clàr 6: Cosgais Calpa agus Maoineachadh 

Chaidh pròiseactan mòra a chrìochnachadh am bliadhna seo mar, Cuimhneachan Cogaidh Leòdhais, Creed Micro Grid, 
Uinneagan ùra aig Talla Bhaile Steòrnabhaigh, agus obraichean Cùlbhart Shieldinish.  Thathar a’ dèanamh adhartas air 
pròiseactan ùra ann an Lacasdail agus Sgoil an t-Oib, Cùram Còmhnaidh Leòdhais, Aonad Lùths Ionadail na h-Eileanan 
an Iar, ùrachadh air Cidhe Loch nam Madadh agus Pròiseact Ath-Nuadhachail Ardseileach.  
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Dèanadas mu choinneamh Comharran Frèam-obrach Seaghach 
Tha Còd Seaghach airson Ionmhas Calpa Ùghdarrasan Ionadail a’ toirt sùbailteachd ionadail a thaobh co-dhùnaidhean 
in-thasgaidh le stiùir agus taic bho sreath de chomharran dèanadais. Dh’aontaich Comataidh Poileasaidh is Stòras air 
8 Màirt 2017 ris na comharran airson 2017/18. Tha na comharran air an dealbh gus dèanamh cinnteach gu bheil in-
thasgadh calpa seaghach, so-ruigsinneach agus seasmhach a thaobh ionmhais. Tha na comharran nas ìsle na bha an 
tuairmse  mar thoradh air nach do ràinig cosgais calpa na h-ìrean a chaidh ro-ainmeachadh. Tha na prìomh chomharran 
aig Clàr 7. 

1. Cosgais Calpa: comharra stèidhichte gu dearbhadh ìre in-thasgadh tairgse ann an so-mhaoin calpa a bhith a’
fuireach an taobh-staigh chrìochan seasmhach.

2. Feumalachd Ionmhas Calpa: tha an comharra seo a’ tomhas am feum air airgead a thoirt air iasad air adhbhar
calpa. Gu dèanamh cinnteach gur ann air adhbhar calpa a gheibhear iasad ùine mheadhanaich, chan eil
iasadach bho muigh a’ dol seachad air, ach a-mhàin airson geàrr-ùine, Iarrtas Maoineachaidh Calpa sa
bhliadhna roimhe an cois thuairmsean airson IMC a bharrachd anns a’ bhliadhna ghnàthaichte agus an dà
bhliadhna ionmhais ri teachd.

3. Crìoch Obrachaidh agus Crìoch ùghdarraichte airson iasadach: fon Chòd Sheaghach, feumar na crìochan
sin a shuidheachadh gus an tèid iasadach a chumail taobh-staigh na ghabhas pàigheadh air ais. Canar
Crìochan Obrachaidh agus Crìochan Ùghdarraichte riutha seo. Tha an àireamh iomlan a’ comharrachadh an
sùim a chaidh a ghabhail air iasad an taobh-staigh an dà chuid Crìochan Obrachaidh agus Crìochan
Ùghdarraichte a’ daingneachadh gu bheil iasadach na Comhairle ga ghabhail os làimh a-mhàin airson taic ri
gnìomhan in-thasgaidh calpa.

4. Co-mheasa cosgais Ionmhais ri sruth airgead bhliadhnail: tha seo na chomharra air so-ruigsinneachd agus
a’ foillseachadh buaidh ionmhais co-dhùnaidhean in-thasgadh calpa le bhith a’ soilleireachadh an cuibhreann
den bhuidseat bhliadhnail a dh’fheumar gus coinneachadh ri cosgais iasad a thaobh caiteachas calpa.

Clàr 7: Comharran Seaghach 

Comharra Seaghach 
Tuairmse 
2017/18 

£k 

Fìor-chosg 
2017/18 

£k 
Cosgais Calpa Iomlan a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn  5,642 (2,194) 
Feumalachd Ionmhas Calpa  146,292 130,343 

Fiachan air Buidhnean Eile aig 31 Màrt 146,025 142,888 

Crìoch Obrachaidh 146,025 142,025 

Crìoch Ùghdarraichte 146,025 146,025 

Co-mheasa a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn de Cosgais Ionmhais ri Sruth Airgead Bhliadhnail     9.17% 8.88% 

Gheibhear fiosrachadh nas mionaidiche air in-thasgadh calpa, obair Rianachd Ionmhais, agus Comharran Seaghach ann 
an Ro-innleachd Rianachd Ionmhais agus Aithisg Bhliadhnail Rianachd Ionmhais. 

Co-bhòrd an Amalachaidh 
Chaidh aontachadh ri Sgeama Amalachaidh airson Co-bhòrd Amalachaidh nan Eilean Siar (IJB) le Riaghaltas na h-Alba 
air 16 Ògmhios 2015 agus air 1 Giblean 2016 thuit uallach ionmhais agus ro-innleachdail na seirbheisean a tha fo 
dhleastanas air an IJB. Bho thaobh na Comhairle tha seo a’ gabhail a-steach obair shòisealachd le inbhich agus 
seirbheisean cùram coimhearsnachd, ceartas an dèidh eucoir agus cuid de dh’obraichean leasachadh thaighean.  

Chuir a’ Chomhairle £19.9m ris an IJB ann an 2017/18 agus chuir seo ri còrr de £3m a thèid a chur ri cùl-mhaoin an IJB. 
(Nota 37 a’ mìneachadh mar a gheibhear leth-bhreac de chunntasan an IJB).  

Duilleag a’ Chothromachaidh 
Tha Duilleag a’ Chothromachaidh a’ toirt mion-chunntas gu bheil so-mhaoin agus do-mhaoin air meudachadh còrr air 
£82m thairis na bliadhna. Ged a chaidh còrr air £9m a chosg air so-mhaoin, tha buaidh ìsleachaidh luach agus ath-
luachadh a’ ciallachadh gu bheil luach so-mhaoin air a dhol an àirde dìreach £5m gu £318m. Tha àrdachadh de £5m ann 
an calpa obrachaidh, mar thoradh air gluasadan beaga ann an cothromachadh luchd-fiach agus luchd-creideis agus 
lùghdachadh ann an in-thasgadh geàrr-ùine agus cothromachadh banca. Chaidh do-mhaoin nam peinnsein a’ 
lùghdachadh £70m. 

Tha do-mhaoin peinnsein a’ riochdachadh an tuairmse ghnàthaichte as fheàrr de luach shochairean pheinnsein ris am 
feum a’ Chomhairle coinneachadh co-cheangailte ri sochairean air an cosnadh le luchd-obrach a th’ ann agus a bh’ ann 
suas gu 31 Màrt 2018. Tha na sochairean sin foillsichte ann an teirmean luach ghnàthaichte an àite an airgead a thèid a 
phàigheadh. Tha seo a’ gabhail a-steach luach tìm an airgid, far a bheil luach airgid an-dràsta ga mheas nas àirde na 
airgead a gheibhear san àm ri teachd. Tha lùghdachadh buailteachd bhon uiridh a’ sealltainn staid a’ mhargaid, agus na 
beachdan ionmhasail a th’ aig na achdairean.  

Iasadach 
Cha deach iasadach ùr sam bith a thoirt a-mach rè na bliadhna. Chaidh in-stòras a chleachdadh a thaobh maoin cosgais 
calpa agus iasadan a’ tighinn gu ceann.  
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Thar-shealladh, Cunnartan agus Planaichean Ionmhais na h-Àma ri teachd 
Tha Buidseat a’ Chomhairle 2018/19 stèidhichte air maoin a tha air a’ stèidheachadh gach bliadhna bho Riaghaltas na h-
Alba. Thèid am buidseat gu h-iomlan £107.4m, a maoineachadh le Buileachaidhean bhon Riaghaltas (£86.0m), 
Reataichean Gnòthachas (£7.7m), Cìs Comhairle (£10.1m), Suim-chothromachaidh (£1.6m) agus sàbhaladh bho Ath-
dhealbhach Seirbheis (£2m). 

Tha Prògram Ath-dhealbhachadh Seirbheisean na phàirt chudromach ann a bhith a’ stèidheachadh a’ bhuidseat, agus 
thig gach seirbheis ath-sgrùdadh thairis air an teirme seo sa Chomhairle.  Tha Fo-Chomataidh Seirbheisean agus 
Leasachadh a’ coimhead thairis air pròiseactan ath-dhealbhachadh air leth, fhad sa tha Bòrd a’ Bhuidseit a’ cumail sùil 
air a’ phrògram gu lèir.    

Tha Clàr 8 a’ sealltainn raon de shuidheachaidhean air na bheachdaich a’ Chomhairle aig àm stèidheachadh a’ Bhuidseit 
sa Ghearran 2018. `S iad na prìomh dhùbhlain a dh’fhaodadh buaidh a thoirt: àrdachadh tuarastail, atmhorachd agus 
ìrean tabhartasan an Riaghaltais. Tha seo a’ sealltainn gu bheil e riatanach gun tèid ath-dhealbhadh seirbheise a 
bhuileachadh gus am bi buidseat cothromach aig a’ Chomhairle aig deireadh an teirm seo. 

Clàr 8: Ro-mheasadh Teachdan-geàrr a’ Bhuidseit 2019-29 

Tha dleastanasan am poileasaidh aig Riaghaltais na h-Alba, air an sealltainn ann am manifesto an SNP, agus tha seo 
cuideachd a’ toirt a-steach dleastanasan fìor a thaobh maoineachadh an NHS a’ fàs.  Cuideachd, tha e a’ sealltainn 
fòcas air builean foghlam, agus meudachadh foghlam anns na bliadhnaichean tràth. Le seo, chì sinn gum bidh trioblaid 
aig Riaghaltasan Ionadail a thaobh atmhorachd, duaisean pàighidh, iarrtas air seirbheisean agus reachdas ag 
atharrachadh bho bhith a’ lùghdachadh goireasan ionmhasail.   

Thathar and dùil gur maoin aon bhliadhna a gheibhear ann an 2019/20 airson ùghdarrassan ionadail, agus tha 
“Scotland’s Fiscal Outlook” a chaidh fhoillseachadh anns a’ Chèitean 2018 a dearbhadh am beachd gun lean 
lùghdachadh ann am maoineachadh airson comhairlean.  Nuair a tha barrachd fiosrachaidh ri fhaighinn, nì a’ Chomhairle 
ùrachadh air ro-innleachd, agus beachdaich a’ Chomhairle air nam feumalachdan, luathachadh no meudachadh 
sàbhalaidhean.  

Tha a’ Chomhairle a’ cumail sùil air Brexit agus a’ bhuaidh a dh’fhaodadh seo toirt air a’ Chomhairle.  A’ rèir choltais `s e 
cuideam atmhorachd gheàrr-ùine, an dà chuid air airgead bhliadhnail agus calpa a bhuaidh as motha agus tha seo 
mìnichte `s na dùbhlain ionmhais gu h-ìosail. Ged a tha a’ Chomhairle a leantainn le cothrom air maoin Eòrpach, chan eil 
na prìomh sheirbheisean an urra ri gu lean e, nas motha gu bheil a’ Chomhairle an urra ri luchd-obrach Eòrpach. Le sin 
dheth chan eil ullachadh a bharrachd anns na cunntasan ann an dàimh ri Brexit. 

Ann a bhith a’ stèidheachadh buidseit gach bliadhna, tha a’ Chomhairle a’ comharrachadh nam prìomh chunnartan 
ionmhais a tha roimhpe. ’S e lùghdachadh ann am maoineachadh bliadhnail fhathast an cunnart as motha. Tha na 
cunnartan meadhan ìre air am meas mar a leanas:  

 a’ meudachadh iarrtais air seirbheisean air sgàth: deamografach; pacaidean le prìs àrd; greisean-gnìomhachais
air tìr-mòr; agus eadar-ghluasad bho sheirbheisean cloinne;

 dàil ann am buileachadh Pròiseact Ath-dhealbhachadh a tha air dheireadh, no nach deach sàbhaladh ro-
mheasta a dhèanamh;
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 ro-bheag seachnadh air lìonadh-talmhainn a’ fàgail àrdachadh ann an cìs lìonadh-talmhainn agus saoirsne;

 àrdachadh grad ann an ìre na h-atmhorachd (no-pàighidh) (a’ gabhail a-steach buaidh bho BREXIT);

 duaisean pàigheadh nas àirde nam buidseat;

 àrdachadh ann an droch fhiachan agus cuideam a bharrachd air buidseatan Leasachadh Eaconamach;

 cosgais a bharrachd air Glèidheadh Geamhraidh agus càraidhean deatamach an dèidh milleadh;

 thar-chosgais air pròiseactan calpa; agus

 atharrachadh ann an dòighean sgaoileadh ionmhais, an làr nam measg, do Riaghaltas Ionadail an Alba.

Tha a’ Chomhairle air leantainn le bhith a’ foillseachadh deagh rianachd ionmhais ann an 2017/18, ann an co-theacsa 
lùghdachadh stòrais. Feumar plana airson maoineachadh phròiseactan, agus £4.8m nach deach a ghealladh gu 
buidseat sam bith, agus le seo, tha a’ Chomhairle ann an àite math airson dèiligeadh ris an t-àm mi-chinnteach a tha ri 
thighinn.   

Comh. Ruairidh MacAoidh Malcolm Burr Raibeart Emmott 
Ceannard Àrd-oifigear Stiùiriche Ionmhais agus Stòras Corporra 
24 Sultain 2018 24 Sultain 2018 24 Sultain 2018 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

The Comhairle’s Responsibilities 

The Comhairle is required: 

 to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In the Comhairle, that officer is the Director of
Finance and Corporate Resources.

 to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

 ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in accordance with proper
accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003).

 approve the Annual Accounts for signature.

I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Audit and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting 
on 24 September. 

Councillor Roddie Mackay 
Leader 

24 September 2018 

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources Responsibilities 

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Comhairle’s Annual 
Accounts, in accordance with proper practices as required by legislation and as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources has: 

 selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently

 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent

 complied with the Code of Practice

 complied with the Local Authority Accounting Code (in so far as it is compatible with legislation)

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources has also: 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I certify that the Annual Accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Comhairle (and its group) at 
the reporting date and the transactions of the Comhairle for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

Robert Emmott BSc CPFA 
Director of Finance and Corporate Resources 

24 September 2018 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

This statement assures stakeholders the adequacy of Corporate Governance Arrangements within Comhairle nan Eilean 
Siar.    

Scope of Responsibility  
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar is responsible for and committed to ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with 
the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. The Comhairle has a statutory duty of best value under the Local Government in Scotland Act 
2003 to make arrangements to secure Continuous Improvement in performance, while maintaining an appropriate 
balance between quality and cost; and in making those arrangements and securing that balance, to have regard to 
economy, efficiency, effectiveness, equal opportunities and sustainability. In discharging this overall responsibility 
Members and Senior Officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements (known as the governance 
framework) for the Governance of the Comhairle’s affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions. This 
includes setting the strategic direction, vision, culture and values of the Comhairle; the effective operation of corporate 
systems, processes and internal controls; engaging with and leading the community; monitoring the achievement of 
strategic priorities and agreed outcomes; ensuring that services are delivered cost effectively; maintaining appropriate 
arrangements for the management of risk; and ensuring that the Comhairle complies with the statement on the role of the 
Chief Finance Officer in Local Government. 

The Comhairle has approved a Code of Corporate Governance consistent with the principles and recommendations of 
the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy)/SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives) framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the Local Code and Action Plan 
can be found on the Comhairle’s website and progress to date is summarised below. The Code evidences the 
Comhairle’s commitment to achieving good Governance and demonstrates compliance with the standards recommended 
by CIPFA and SOLACE. The local Code will be reviewed and updated annually and was approved by the Comhairle 
most recently on 3 October 2017. 

The Comhairle has put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. Internal 
controls will never eliminate risk of failure to achieve strategic priorities and outcomes but can provide reasonable, if not 
absolute, assurance. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievements of the Comhairle’s strategic priorities and outcomes; to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should be realised; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The Local Code of Corporate Governance is supported by evidence of compliance which is reviewed on an annual basis 
and is available for inspection. 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values which direct and control 
Comhairle activities and through which we account to, engage with and lead the community. It enables us to monitor the 
achievement of the strategic priorities and outcomes set out in the Outer Hebrides Community Planning Partnership’s 
Local Outcome Improvement Plan 2017-27 which has informed the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2017-21 and to 
consider whether priorities and outcomes have led to the delivery of appropriate cost effective services. The Governance 
Framework was further strengthened during 2017/18 in preparation principally for the implementation of Part 2 of the 
Community Empowerment (Scotland) Act 2015 (“the 2015 Act”) and will continue to be reviewed. 

Governance Arrangements 
The following provides a summary of the main features of the Comhairle’s governance arrangements as described in the 
Code.  

The Outer Hebrides Community Planning Partnership (OHCPP) reviewed its governance arrangements to ensure that 
they were fit for purpose in terms of the 2015 Act and agreed revised arrangements on 9 November 2016. The thematic 
groups have been replaced with Priority Groups which report directly to the CPP Board in relation to the Action Plan for 
each of the three strategic priorities to be delivered under the Local Outcome Improvement Plan (LOIP) which was 
published as required by 1 October 2017. The vision of the OHCPP is to promote and realise the full potential of the 
Outer Hebrides as a prosperous, well-educated and healthy community enjoying a good quality of life, fully realising the 
benefits of our natural environment and cultural values. 

A priority group has been established for each priority reporting directly to the CPP Board. The work of the Board is also 
underpinned by the Executive Group whose membership includes the five partners with additional duties under the 2015 
Act. The respective roles and responsibilities of the Board and Executive Group were agreed on 9 November 2016 and 
can be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk. The work of the Executive Group is underpinned by four Governance Groups: 
Prevention and Inequalities; Community Engagement and Locality Planning; Performance Management and 
Improvement and Resources and Financial Management. Governance Arrangements were strengthened during 2017/18 
by the introduction of a Performance Management Framework, standardised reporting and the introduction of an 
Inequalities Impact Assessment Tool to assess Programmes within the Local Outcome Improvement Plan.  

As part of a review and development of the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2017-21, the Comhairle held a Members’ 
Seminar, facilitated by Corporate Management Team (CMT), on 21 June 2017. The aim was to consider the Comhairle’s 
future strategic priorities in the wider context of the current public sector financial environment; Community Planning; 
Community Empowerment; Health and Social Care integration; Our Islands: Our Future: a Deal for the Islands; and the 
Islands Bill.   The initial basis of discussions at the Members’ Seminar was the three overarching strategic priorities 
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identified by the Outer Hebrides Community Planning Partnership (OHCPP), as set out in its Local Outcome 
Improvement Plan (LOIP): 

 the Outer Hebrides retains and attracts people to ensure a sustainable population;

 the Outer Hebrides has sustainable economic growth and all our people have access to appropriate
employment opportunities; and

 the islands offer attractive opportunities that improve the quality of life, wellbeing and health of all our people.

Following the outcomes of the discussions at the Members' Seminar the key priorities identified in the Corporate 
Strategy 2017-21 are:  

 Economy and Jobs;

 Communities and Housing;

 Education, Skills and Training; and

 Quality of Life, Health and Wellbeing

Thereafter, the draft Strategy was put out to consultation in October 2017 to the public, Community Planning Partners, 
Community Councils and Locality Planning Groups, with a deadline for responses set for 15 November 2017, 
subsequently extended to 17 November 2017. The consultation was made available on the Comhairle’s web site: 
https://cnes2.cne-siar.gov.uk/have-your-say/consultations/2017/corporate-strategy-2017-21/  

Following consultation responses, the revised Corporate Strategy 2017-21 was approved by the Comhairle on 
13 December 2017 and, at the time of writing, is ready for publication.  An online version of the Corporate Strategy can 
be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk.       

The 2018/19 service business plans were approved in February 2018 for five Comhairle departments. Cùram is Slàinte 
(Health and Social Care Partnership) will report to the Integration Joint Board (IJB).  These plans are an update on the 
2017/18 business plans.  The Comhairle departments are currently working on new four year business plans which will 
be based on the Local Outcome improvement Plan 2017-27 (LOIP) and the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2017-21 and 
it is anticipated that these new business plans will be presented to the Comhairle for approval at the September series of 
meetings.   

Policy making and decisions are delivered through a Committee Structure which was the subject of review during 
2016/17 with amendments approved in March 2017. All decisions are made by the Comhairle other than those matters 
specifically delegated to other statutory or quasi-judicial committees and in relation to Human Resources matters 
affecting individual employees. The Audit and Scrutiny Committee forms part of the Comhairle’s decision making 
structure and is fully compliant with Audit Committee principles and full details of its responsibilities are available at 
www.cne-siar.gov.uk. The Audit and Scrutiny Committee undertakes the core functions of an Audit Committee as 
identified in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities Report by providing independent and 
high level assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance process. 

The Audit and Scrutiny Committee considers the reports and recommendations of external audit and inspection agencies 
and their implications for governance and risk and supports effective relationships between external audit and internal 
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies and encourages the promotion of the value of the audit process and 
the financial statements. The Committee considers the external auditor’s opinion and reports to members and monitors 
management action in response to the issues raised by external audit. These arrangements ensure that the Comhairle 
has the necessary processes and procedures in place to ensure that it is able to fulfil its overall purpose, achieve its 
intended outcomes for service users and operate in an economical, efficient and ethical manner as prescribed in the 
CIPFA role of Head of Internal Audit Statement. 

Following approval by the Comhairle in February 2018 of a challenging programme of service redesign was approved 
and governance arrangements to support this process were agreed on 28 February 2018.  These include the 
establishment of project teams including lead officers for each theme as well as independent officers and officers from 
central departments to support the process. Corporate Management Team will also play a central role as many of the 
themes cut across Departments. The role, remit and membership of Continuous Improvement Sub Committee have been 
amended to include quality assurance of this process and its revised remit can be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk. Its 
membership includes the Convener, Chair of Policy and Resources Committee and Chair of Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee and five other Members to achieve geographic coverage. The Sub-Committee has been renamed Service 
Change and Improvement Sub-Committee. 

The Comhairle has also established an Investment Delivery Board to oversee the delivery of the Capital Programme 
2018-23 and the Strategic Housing Investment Programme (SHIP). This Board will consist of elected members and 
substitutes to ensure that meetings are quorate and will include representatives from Hebridean Housing Partnership 
(HHP), a Registered Social Landlord and the Comhairle’s principal partner in respect of delivery of the SHIP and the 
Lewis Residential Care project which includes housing with extra care. This Board will meet monthly with the maximum 
possible delegated authority to allow for efficient decision making within project budgets and delivery programmes 
approved by the Comhairle and HHP. 
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The Comhairle’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information, 
financial regulations, accounting policy bulletins, administrative procedures, management supervision and a system of 
delegation and accountability.  Development and maintenance of the system is undertaken by managers within the 
Comhairle.   

 
Each Service Committee receives quarterly performance management reports including information drawn from the 
Comhairle’s Interplan performance management system which includes the elements listed above as well as progress 
against service business plan targets. 
 
The Comhairle has adopted proactive risk management arrangements to enable decisions to be based on 
comprehensively assessed risks.  The Comhairle’s high level strategic risk register is reported annually to Elected 
Members, operational risk is reported regularly to the Comhairle’s Corporate Management Team and service 
committees, and progress made on operational risk actions is published quarterly on the webpage.  
 
Risk management is viewed as a continuous and evolving process that runs throughout the strategies and service 
delivery of the Comhairle.  The next business planning period coincides with the Comhairle’s new Corporate Strategy 
and it is our aim to use this time to improve and expand our current processes.  
 
During 2016 an updated Reporting Concerns at Work/ Whistleblowing policy was put in place and publicised to all 
employees and can be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk.  A Code of Conduct for employees is also in place and high 
standards of behaviour are supported by employee contracts of employment and annual staff development and 
appraisals which identify individual training and development needs which then inform departmental training plans which 
are submitted to Human Resources Sub-Committee.  A revised code of conduct for Elected Members was introduced in 
2010/11 together with training on the requirements on the new code for Elected Members.  Member training on this Code 
and the latest guidance took place in May 2017.  Remits have been approved for the Leader of the Comhairle and 
Convener and those for councillors proposed by the Improvement Service adopted.  A training needs analysis for 
Members is undertaken on an annual basis and individual development plans subsequently agreed.  
 
The Comhairle has reported on its equality monitoring statistics for 2017/18 and has updated its Equality Mainstreaming 
and Outcomes Report to cover the period 2017-21.  The Comhairle consulted with the community and used the feedback 
received to further develop the over-arching outcomes, actions and measures which will demonstrate our progress 
towards meeting the Equality Outcomes.   
 
The Comhairle’s strategic priorities are cognisant of current financial and other resources and play a pivotal role in 
striving to achieve continuous improvement and best value. 
 
Statutory Roles 
The Comhairle’s procedural documentation clearly details the decision making structure; this includes Scheme of 
Delegation; Standing Orders; Contract Regulations and  Financial Regulations. 
 
The Comhairle’s Scheme of Delegation designates the Chief Executive as the Comhairle’s Head of Paid Service in terms 
of Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  This requires the post holder to carry out the specified duties associated 
with the statutory role including responsibility where it is appropriate for setting out proposals and reporting to Comhairle 
in relation to the undernoted matters: 

 The manner in which the discharge by the authority of its different functions is coordinated; 

 The number and grades of staff required by the authority for the discharge of its functions; 

 The organisation of the authority’s staff; and 

 The appointment and proper management of the authority’s staff. 
 

The Head of Executive Office acts as Monitoring Officer and ensures that the Comhairle acts within legal and statutory 
requirements.  The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources is the Proper Officer of the Comhairle with statutory 
responsibility for the administration of its financial affairs and for the purposes of Section 95 of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973.  Both post holders are Members of the Comhairle’s Corporate Management Team.   
 
The Head of Service- Children’s Services is the Chief Social Work Officer in terms of the Social Work (Scotland) Act 
1968 and is required to carry out the specified duties associated with the statutory role by ensuring the provision of 
effective provisional advice to Members and Officers in relation to the provision of social work services.  As part of the 
Comhairle’s response to the legislative changes brought about by the Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014 
the management of adult and criminal justice social work services was delegated to the Integration Joint Board with 
effect from 1 April 2016.   
 
Code of Corporate Governance / Response to Audit Actions 
The Local Scrutiny Plan for Comhairle nan Eilean Siar prepared by the Local Area Network has identified that no 
additional scrutiny is required other than that which will apply nationally to all councils.   
 
Previous external scrutiny identified the need to progress workforce planning and make increased use of self-
assessment and benchmarking.  In 2017/18 further progress was made in relation to each of these areas as follows: 
 
The Comhairle is supporting services to plan for transformational change with a programme of Service Redesign.  This 
Transformational Change plan was approved by the Comhairle in October 2017 and the Service Redesign approach in 
December 2017.   
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This approach, which includes workforce and apprenticeship planning as a fundamental aspect, requires good 
benchmarking, self-assessment and performance data alongside a strong understanding of the service, its strengths and 
its weaknesses. To plan and implement service redesign, the service must understand its performance, its employees, 
its customers, its costs and its strategic direction.  It must be using this information strategically, setting the business 
direction and engaging with customers based on this information, and to do this, the service must be confident that it is 
gathering the right information and confident in the quality of the information it is producing.  
 
The Comhairle publishes benchmarking information and provides a local perspective to explain the data in more detail 
and to inform the public about the service being provided including trend data, costs and satisfaction with the service.   
 
The Head of Executive Office reviewed the Local Code of Corporate Governance and submitted a revised Code to Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee in September 2017 and to the Comhairle in October 2017.  Corporate Management Team and 
the Comhairle agreed the action plan as follows: 

1. Have a new Corporate Strategy in place for the period post 2017; 

2. Implement Transformational Change Proposals agreed by the Comhairle; 

3. Continue rolling program of PSIF evaluation; 

4. Implement for the interests of the Comhairle the action plan in relation to services for older people in the 
Western Isles; and 

5. Implement for the Comhairle’s interests relevant actions in the Local Outcome Improvement Plan. 
 

These actions are a consolidation of agreed improvement actions by the Comhairle particularly in regard to continuous 
improvement and reflect the work of the Continuous Improvement Sub Committee both through its role in relation to self-
assessment under PSIF and the risk based approach being adopted to monitor achievement of such projects and 
proposals as are referred to it.  Progress has been made to date in relation to the action plan as follows: 

1. The Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2017-21 is now in place and further details in relation to its themes and 
priorities are detailed above. 

2. The Comhairle has put in place governance arrangements to implement its transformational change/service 
redesign proposals as detailed above.  These arrangements are supported by the Transformational Change 
Strategic Plan approved by the Comhairle in October 2017 which provides the necessary strategies, templates, 
policies and guidelines.  

3. In 2017/18, the Comhairle has completed PSIF self-assessments and implemented all six corporate 
recommendations: delivered a new consultations webpage based on We Asked, You Said, We Did; integrated 
Risk Management into the Comhairle’s Performance Management System; developed a new exit interview 
procedure and reporting mechanism; developed equalities monitoring around public consultations; developed a 
method to capture corporate strategy outcome progress; and developed quality assurance around performance 
reporting. 

4. The programme of self-assessment for 2018/19 was agreed by the Service Change and Improvement Sub-
Committee on 4 April 2017; this phase of self-assessment will include undertaking assessments of Criterion 1(a) 
planning for the future, Criterion 3(e) recognising and caring for people and Criterion 5(b), developing services 
around customer needs. 

5. Integrated CMT approved the updated Action Plan on 5 April 2018 and a Progress Review will be conducted by 
the Care Inspectorate in the week commencing 30 April 2018.  Individual actions continue to be reported 
through Interplan, The Comhairle’s performance monitoring system. 

6. As detailed above Action Plans have been approved for the three LOIP priorities. Comhairle departments are 
currently working on new 4 year business plans which will be based on the Local Outcome improvement Plan 
2017-27 (LOIP) and the Comhairle’s newly approved Corporate Strategy and it is anticipated that these new 
business plans will be presented to the Comhairle for approval at the September 2018 series of meetings.   

 
In relation to the implementation of a new Performance Appraisal system which was highlighted as an action in the Local 
Code of Corporate Governance approved in October 2016, performance appraisal rates are monitored across all 
services and reported as a performance indicator in business plans.  Quality assurance on completion is now undertaken 
by human resources before it is submitted to Audit.  The challenge is balancing the need for strong performance with the 
need to reduce the hours being taken up by performance appraisal (over 4,500 hours across the Comhairle every year).  
Following consultation with the JCC and CMT, a new appraisal procedure was introduced in April 2018 which reduces 
the paperwork but maintains the quality assurance process. 
 
Review of Effectiveness 
During 2017/18 Comhairle nan Eilean Siar continued to put in place appropriate management and reporting 
arrangements to enable it to be satisfied that its approach to Corporate Governance is both appropriate and effective in 
practice. 
 
Specifically the Comhairle’s governance arrangements have been reviewed and tested against the requirements of the 
CIPFA/ SOLACE framework.  Whilst this process of review is coordinated corporately and approved by Corporate 
Management Team, Directors and Heads of Service have a responsibility to ensure that their own governance 
arrangements are adequate and operating effectively.  In line with the CIPFA/ SOLACE framework the Chief Executive 
and each Director is required to make an annual statement confirming that this is the case.  The Local Scrutiny Plan has 
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identified no additional scrutiny as being required. Service committees, Policy and Resources Committee and Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee will continue to review Audit Scotland findings and strategic and operational plans within their remit 
in 2018/19. 

The Internal Audit function within Comhairle nan Eilean Siar is located within the Finance and Corporate Resources 
Department but the Chief Internal Auditor also has a line of accountability to the Chief Executive for the independent 
appraisal of the Comhairle’s systems of internal control.  During 2017/18 the Internal Audit section operated in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which were introduced on 1 April 2013.  Internal 
Audit is subject to an annual review by the Comhairle’s External Auditors to ensure that the section continues to operate 
according to good practice.  The review for 2017/18 concluded that Internal Audit operates in line with the PSIAS and in 
line with the established arrangements and that review was reported to the Comhairle’s Audit and Scrutiny Committee.   

On the basis of Internal Audit work completed in 2017/18 Comhairle nan Eilean Siar’s established internal control 
procedures were generally found to operate as intended to meet management’s requirements.  A number of 
recommendations have been made by Internal Audit to further improve controls through action plans developed with 
management to address improvements.  Internal Audit’s overall opinion based on the work carried out is that reasonable 
assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Comhairle’s internal control systems in the year to 
31 March 2018.  The objectives of internal control have been substantially met.  In line with established practice Internal 
Audit’s annual report for 2017/2018 will be reported to the Comhairle’s Audit and Scrutiny Committee on 19 June 2018 
and can be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk.  This Report includes the identification of observations and exceptions. 

Review of Effectiveness – Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
The CIPFA code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption was published during the 2014/15 financial 
year.  As such the Comhairle was required to review its arrangements for managing and mitigating exposure to risk of 
fraud and corruption.  The Comhairle’s anti-fraud corruption, bribery and irregularity strategy and response arrangements 
were updated on 28 October 2014 to take cognisant of the said Code and can be accessed at www.cne-siar.gov.uk. 
Following review of the Comhairle’s arrangements for the year 2017/18 and in accordance with the requirements of the 
Code the following declaration is made:  having considered all of the principles we are satisfied that Comhairle nan 
Eilean Siar has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risk and commits to maintain its 
vigilance to tackle fraud.  

Significant Governance Issues 
The Comhairle’s Reporting Concerns at Work Policy was reviewed during 2016/17 and widely publicised.  No concerns 
have been raised under this policy.   

One complaint against a Councillor was submitted to the Commissioner on Ethical Standards on Public Life in Scotland 
during 2017/18 in relation to an alleged failure to register an interest.  The Commissioner has identified a potential 
breach and submitted a Report to the Standards Commission for Scotland.  A hearing date has been set for 3 July 2018. 

In April 2018, an Internal Audit review highlighted concerns about the integrity of payroll data provided for processing by 
departments. The Comhairle are addressing this weakness through a training programme for all managers with 
responsibility for authorising payroll transactions. Progress with implementing the Internal Audit recommendations is 
being monitored by the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

Improvements Proposed 
A position statement in relation to progress with the Local Code of Corporate Governance improvement/ action plan is 
provided above.  The plan will be updated following the approval of the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance in 
Autumn 2018 and a new action plan produced.   

Conclusion 
We consider the governance and internal control environment operating during 2017/18 to provide reasonable and 
objective assurance that significant risks impacting on the achievement of our principal strategic priorities and outcomes 
will be identified and actions taken to avoid or mitigate their impact.  A number of improvements are proposed to further 
strengthen our governance arrangements and these are set out in the improvement/ action plan for the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance.  Implementation of this plan is a priority and progress will be reported to the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee. We also consider that the governance arrangements which have been put in place in relation to service 
redesign to support the Comhairle’s Transformational Change targets are robust and will support this process.   

Systems are in place for regular review and improvement of the governance and internal control environment.  The 
Comhairle will continue to review its corporate governance arrangements and take any additional steps as are required 
to enhance these arrangements further and will review their implementation and operation as part of our next annual 
review. 

Councillor Roddie Mackay Malcolm Burr
Leader Chief Executive

24 September 2018 24 September 2018
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REMUNERATION REPORT 

Introduction 
This report is set out in accordance with the Local Authority (Scotland) Act, as amended by the Local Authority Accounts 
(Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2014.  These regulations require the disclosure of certain details in respect of the 
remuneration and pension benefits of senior councillors and senior employees, including those employed by subsidiary 
bodies.  The term remuneration means gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances and expenses, and compensation for 
loss of employment.  It excludes pension contributions paid by the Comhairle.  Gross salary means the annual salary for a 
full time employee or councillor and for presentation purposes the salaries of part time employees or those who have been 
employed or served as Councillors for less than a full year are annualised. 

The term pension benefits, covers the in-year contributions paid by the Comhairle for the employee or Councillor, and their 
accrued pension benefits at 31 March 2018.  

All information disclosed in the following tables will be audited by external auditors.  The other sections will be reviewed by 
external auditors to ensure that they are consistent with the financial statements. 

Arrangements for Remuneration 

Councillors 
The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration) Regulations 
2007 (SSI No. 2007/183).  The Regulations provide for the grading of Councillors for the purposes of remuneration 
arrangements, as either the Leader of the Council, the Civic Head (Convener), Senior Councillors or Councillors.  The 
Leader of the Council and the Civic head cannot be the same person for the purposes of payment of remuneration.  A 
Senior Councillor is a Councillor who holds a significant position of responsibility in the Council’s political management 
structure and for the Comhairle this has been assumed to be the Committee Chairpersons and the Vice-chair of Policy and 
Resources committee. 

When determining the level of remuneration for Councillors the Scottish Ministers consider the recommendations of the 
Scottish Local Authority Remuneration Committee (SLARC).  This is an advisory Non-Departmental Public Body set up in 
2005 to advise Scottish Ministers on the remuneration, allowances and expenses incurred by Local Authority Councillors.  

The salary that is to be paid to the Leader of the Council is set out in the Regulations.  For 2017/18 the salary for the 
Leader of the Comhairle is £27,013 (full year equivalent £28,213).  The Regulations permit the council to remunerate one 
Civic Head (Convener), for 2017/18 the salary was £21,031 (full year equivalent £21,160).  The regulations set out the 
maximum salary that may be paid to that Civic Head and Comhairle policy is to pay in accordance with national guidelines. 

The Regulations also set out the remuneration that may be paid to Senior Councillors and the total number of Senior 
Councillors the Council may have.  The maximum yearly amount that may be paid to a Senior Councillor is 75 per cent of 
the total yearly amount payable to the Leader of the Council.  The total yearly amount payable by the council for 
remuneration of all of its six Senior Councillors shall not exceed £114,260.  The Council is able to exercise local flexibility 
in the determination of the precise number of Senior Councillors and their salary within these maximum limits.  

Following the Local Government elections in May 2017, there were a number of changes to the Members appointed to 
Senior Councillor/Leader/Convenor positions, but the number of positions remained at eight. In 2017/18 the remuneration 
paid to these eight Councillors totalled £159,584 (full year equivalent £163,637).  The Regulations also permit the Council 
to pay contributions or other payments as required to the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of those 
Councillors who elect to become members of the pension scheme.  

In addition to the Senior Councillors of the Comhairle the Regulations also set out the remuneration payable to Councillors 
with the responsibility of a Convenor or a Vice-Convenor of a Joint Board such as a Valuation Joint Board.  The 
Regulations require the remuneration to be paid by the Council of which the convenor or vice-convenor (as the case may 
be) is a member.  The Council is also required to pay any pension contributions arising from the convenor or vice-
convenor being a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  The Comhairle is reimbursed by the Joint Board for 
any additional remuneration paid to the member from being a Convenor or Vice-Convenor of a Joint Board. 

Senior Employees 
The salary of senior employees is set by reference to national arrangements.  The Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee 
(SJNC) for Local Authority Services sets the salaries for the Chief Executives of Scottish local authorities.  The majority of 
councils follow national guidelines whereby the salaries of the Corporate Directors and Heads of Service, are based on a 
fixed percentage of the Chief Executive’s salary in three bandings.  The Comhairle agreed to discontinue this link in 2002, 
to allow these officers to receive the nationally negotiated increments to the scale from that date. 

Employees whose remuneration was £50,000 or more 
This table shows the number of employees whose remuneration in 2017/18 was £50,000 or more.  Any starters or leavers 
are recorded in the band that matches their actual remuneration (i.e. not annualised).  During the year a number of 
employees accepted voluntary redundancy or early retirement, and these redundancy and compensation payments are 
included in the remuneration figures.  
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Remuneration Band Number of Employees 
2017/18 2016/17 

 £50,000 - £54,999 20 18 
 £55,000 - £59,999 14 16 
 £60,000 - £64,999 6 4 
 £65,000 - £69,999 - 1 
 £70,000 - £74,999 - - 
 £75,000 - £79,999 6 6 
 £80,000 - £84,999 1 - 
 £85,000 - £89,999 - - 
 £90,000 - £94,999 - - 
 £95,000 - £99,999 - - 
£100,000 - £104,999 1 1 
£105,000 - £109,999 - - 
£110,000 - £104,999 - - 
£115,000 - £119,999 - - 
£120,000 - £124,999 - - 

Total 48 46 

Exit Packages of Employees 
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out 
in the table below. 

Exit package cost 
band (including 

special payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each band 

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 
£0 - £20,000 - - 7 16 7 16 £36,651 £78,214 
£20,001 - £40,000 - - 9 6 9 6 £245,288 £146,766 
£40,001 - £60,000 - - 1 3 1 3 £57,188 £149,835 
£60,001 - £80,000 - - 4 2 4 2 £255,914 £141,957 
£80,001 - £100,000 - - 2 1 2 1 £190,679 £84,374 
£100,001 - £150,000 - - 1 - 1 - £105,250 - 
£150,001 - £200,000 - - - - - - - - 
Total - - 24 28 24 28 £890,970 £601,146 

Remuneration of Senior Councillors and Senior Employees 
The following tables provide details of the remunerations paid to the Comhairle’s Senior Councillors and senior employees:  

Senior Councillors and Convenors of Joint Boards 

Name and Responsibility 

2017/18 2016/17 
Salary, fees & 
Allowances 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ 
Roddie Mackay, Leader of the Comhairle 
(was Vice Chair of Policy & Resources until 04/05/17) 

27,013 27,013 19,006 

Norman A Macdonald, Convenor  21,031 21,031 21,118 

Alasdair Macleod, Vice Chair of Policy & Resources 
(was Chair of Sustainable Development until 04/05/17)  

19,041 19,041 19,006 

Donald Crichton, Chair of Sustainable Development 18,779 18,779 16,893 

Uisdean Robertson, Chair of Transportation & Infrastructure 18,779 18,779 16,893 

Kenny John Macleod, Chair of Communities & Housing 17,190 17,190 - 

Angus Morrison, Chair of Audit & Scrutiny 18,773 18,773 16,893 

Angus McCormack, Chair of Education, Sport & Children's 
Services (was Chair of Audit and Scrutiny until 04/05/17)  

18,978 18,978 19,006 

Total 159,584 159,584 128,815 

Positions only held until 04/05/17 

Angus Campbell, Leader of the Comhairle (until 04/05/17) 2,573 2,573 28,157 
John Mackay, Chair of Transportation & Infrastructure 
(until 04/05/17) Note 1 

19,548 19,548 22,051 

Norman M Macleod, Chair of Communities & Housing 
(until 04/05/17) 

1,737 1,737 19,006 

Catriona Stewart, Chair of Education, Sport & Children’s Services 
(until 04/05/17) 

1,737 1,737 19,006 

Total 185,179 185,179 217,035 

Note 1 – Includes the allowance (£508 for part year 2017/18 and £3,045 in 2016/17) for being the Vice Convenor of the Highland and Western Isles Joint 
Valuation Board which was refunded by Highland Council 
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Total Remuneration paid to Councillors 
The Comhairle paid the following salaries, allowances and expenses to all Councillors (including those included above) 
during the year: 

Type of Remuneration 
2017/18 

 £ 
2016/17 

 £ 

Salaries 553,268 551,850 

Allowances 23,282 23,581 

Expenses 88,055 72,528 

Total 664,605 647,959 

Full details of Councillors’ salaries and expenses for 2017/18 are included in Note 29 of the Annual Accounts and can also 
be viewed on the Comhairle website at www.cne-siar.gov.uk 

Senior Employees 
A senior employee is any employee who meets one or more of the following criteria: 

 who has responsibility for the management of the local authority to the extent that the person has power to direct
or control the major activities of the authority whether solely or collectively with other persons;

 who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c ) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989;

 whose annual remuneration, including any annual remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body is
£150,000 or more.

Employees who fall into the first two categories (for the Comhairle these are the Chief Executive, those that report directly 
to the Chief Executive, the Chief Education Officer, the Chief Social Work Officer and the Service Directors) must be 
disclosed, irrespective of the value of their remuneration. 

Name and Responsibility 

2017/18 2016/17 
Salary, fees & 
Allowances 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ 

Malcolm Burr, Chief Executive Note 1 104,602 104,602 103,520 

Calum Iain Maciver, Director of Development 79,935 79,935 79,096 

Iain Mackinnon, Director of Technical Services 79,935 79,935 79,096 

Robert Emmott, Director of Finance & Corporate Resources 79,935 79,935 79,096 

Bernard Chisolm, Director of Education & Children’s 
Services 

79,935 79,935 79,096 

William Macdonald, Chief Education Officer 63,013 63,013 62,189 

David Gibson, Chief Social Work Officer (from 28/02/18) 
5,406 (58,599 

full year 
equivalent) 

5,406 (58,599 
full year 

equivalent) 
- 

Maria Mackay, Chief Social Work Officer (to 28/02/18) 
19,566 (62,746 

full year 
equivalent) 

19,566 (62,746 
full year 

equivalent) 
60,267 

Lesley McDonald, Head of Executive Office (Monitoring 
Officer) 

56,238 56,238 55,632 

Katherine Mackinnon, Head of Human Resources 56,238 56,238 55,632 

Total 624,803 624,803 653,624 

Note 1 – In 2017/18 the Chief Executive received £3,631 for Returning Officer duties in the UK General Election and Local Elections (£4,700 in 2016/17) 

PENSION BENEFITS 

Pension benefits for councillors and local government employees are provided through the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS).  

Councillors’ pension benefits are based on career average pay.  The Councillors’ pay for each year or part year ending 
31 March (other than the pay in the final year commencing 1 April) is increased by the increase in the cost of living, as 
measured by the appropriate index (or indices) between the end of that year and the last day of the month in which their 
membership of the scheme ends.  The total of the revalued pay is then divided by the period of membership to calculate 
the career average pay.  This is the value used to calculate the pension benefits. 

From 1 April 2015 the pension scheme for local government employees became a Career Average Revalued Earnings 
(CARE) scheme.  Prior to this date a final salary pension scheme that had been in place which based pension benefits on 
the final year’s pay and the number of years that person has been a member of the scheme.  In a CARE scheme the 
pensionable pay for each year of membership is used, in order to calculate a pension amount for that particular year. That 
pension amount is then revalued each year in line with inflation.  These individual pension amounts are then added 
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together to arrive at the total pension payable from the scheme.  The scheme’s normal retirement age for both Councillors 
and employees is 65.  

Contributions from scheme members are based on how much pensionable pay falls into each tier.  This is designed to give 
more equality between the cost and benefits of scheme membership.  From April 2015 contributions are worked out based 
on actual pay.  For employees working part-time their rate is based on the actual rate of pay for the job and contributions 
are only paid on the pay actually earned: 

Rate of pay 2016/17 Rate of pay 2017/18 Contribution rate 

Up to and including £21,102 Up to and including £21,308 5.50% 

Between £21,103 and £27,397 Between £21,309 and £27,693 Between 5.6% and 6.0% 

Between £27,398 and £34,415 Between £27,694 and £34,762 Between 6.1% and 6.5% 

Between £34,416 and £48,544 Between £34,763 and £49,056 Between 6.6% and 7.5% 

Between £48,545 and £54,689 Between £49,057 and £55,265 Between 7.6% and 8.0% 

Between £54,690 and £73,228 Between £55,266 and £74,000 Between 8.1% and 9.0% 

Between £73,229 and £110,782 Between £74,001 and £111,948 Between 9.1% and 10.0% 

More than £110,783 More than £111,949 10.1% and over 

Senior Councillors and Convenors of Joint Boards 
The pension entitlements for Senior Councillors for the year to 31 March 2018 are shown in the following table, together 
with the contribution made by the Comhairle to their pension during the year. 

Name and Responsibility 

In-year pension 
contributions 

Accrued Pension Benefits 

Year to 
31/03/2018 

Year to 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2018 

Difference 
from 

March 
2017 

£ £ £ £ 
Roddie Mackay, Leader of the Comhairle from 
04/05/17 (was Vice Chair of Policy & Resources until 
04/05/17) 

5,268 3,611 Pension 4,000 1,000 

Lump Sum 1,000 - 

Norman A Macdonald, Convenor  4,101 4,012 Pension 2,000 - 
Lump Sum - - 

Alasdair Macleod, Vice Chair of Policy & Resources 
(was Chair of Sustainable Development until 04/05/17) 
Note 1

- - Pension - - 

Lump Sum - - 
Donald Crichton, Chair of Sustainable Development 
(from 04/05/17) 

3,352 - Pension 2,000 - 
Lump Sum - - 

Uisdean Robertson, Chair of Transportation & 
Infrastructure (from 04/05/17) 

3,352 - Pension 3,000 1,000 
Lump Sum - - 

Kenny John Macleod, Chair of Communities & 
Housing from 04/05/17 

3,352 - Pension - - 
Lump Sum - - 

Angus Morrison, Chair of Audit & Scrutiny 
(from 04/05/17) 

3,351 - Pension 2,000 1,000 
Lump Sum - - 

Angus McCormack, Chair of Education, Sport & 
Children's Services (was Chair of Audit and Scrutiny 
until 04/05/17) Note 1 

- - Pension - - 

Lump Sum - - 
Angus Campbell, Leader of the Comhairle 
(until 04/05/17) 

502 5,350 Pension 7,000 - 
Lump Sum 9,000 - 

Total 23,278 12,973 

Positions only held until 04/05/17 

John Mackay, Chair of Transportation & Infrastructure 
(until 04/05/17) 

3,713 3,611 Pension 4,000 1,000 
Lump Sum 2,000 1,000 

Norman M Macleod, Chair of Communities & Housing 
(until 04/05/17) 

339 3,611 Pension 3,000 -1,000
Lump Sum 18,000 17,000

Catriona Stewart, Chair of Education, Sport & 
Children’s Services (until 04/05/17) 

339 3,611 Pension 2,000 -1,000
Lump Sum 11,000 10,000

Total 27,669 23,806 

Note 1 – In 2017/18 the Chair of Education, Sport & Children's Services and the Vice Chair of Policy & Resources were not pensioned
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Senior Employees 
The pension entitlements of Senior Employees for the year to 31 March 2018 are shown in the table below, together with 
the contribution made by the Comhairle to their pension during the year. 

Name and Responsibility 

In-year pension 
contributions 

Accrued Pension Benefits 

Year to 
31/03/2018 

Year to 
31/03/2017 

As at 
31/03/2018 

Difference 
from 

March 
2017 

£ £ £ £ 

Malcolm Burr, Chief Executive 20,397 19,669 
Pension 41,000 2,000 

Lump Sum 73,000 1,000 

Calum Iain Maciver, Director of Development 15,587 15,028 
Pension 28,000 2,000 

Lump Sum 46,000 1,000 

Iain Mackinnon, Director of Technical Services 15,587 15,028 
Pension 37,000 2,000 

Lump Sum 71,000 1,000 

Robert Emmott, Director of Finance & Corporate 
Resources 

15,587 15,028 
Pension 29,000 3,000 

Lump Sum 46,000 - 

Bernard Chisolm, Director of Education & Children’s 
Services 

15,587 15,028 
Pension 19,000 2,000 

Lump Sum 17,000 - 

William Macdonald, Chief Education Officer Note 1 10,838 10,696 
Pension 29,000 - 

Lump Sum 87,000 1,000 

David Gibson, Chief Social Work Officer (from 
28/02/18) 

1,054 - 
Pension - - 

Lump Sum - - 

Maria Mackay, Chief Social Work Officer (to 28/02/18) 3,815 11,451 
Pension 4,000 - 

Lump Sum - - 

Lesley McDonald, Head of Executive Office 
(Monitoring Officer) 

10,966 10,570 
Pension 20,000 1,000 

Lump Sum 34,000 1,000 

Katherine Mackinnon, Head of Human Resources 10,966 10,570 
Pension 26,000 1,000 

Lump Sum 52,000 1,000 

Total 120,384 123,068 

Note 1 – Employee is a member of the Scottish Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

The employees shown in the tables above are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, other than the Note 
above.   

The benefits shown relate to the benefits the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total local government 
service, and not just their current appointment. 

Trade Union Facility Time 
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 place a legislative requirement on public 
sector employers to publish, on an annual basis, a range of data on the amount and cost of facility time within the 
organisation. The purpose of these regulations is to promote transparency and allow for public scrutiny of facility time. 
Facility time is the provision of paid or unpaid time off from an employee’s normal role to undertake Trade Union duties 
and activities as a Union representative. There is a statutory entitlement to reasonable paid time off for undertaking these 
duties. There is no such entitlement to paid time off for activities. 

The Comhairle published Facility Time data for 2017/18 in line with the deadline of 31 July 2018 and details can be found 
on the Comhairle website https://www.cne-siar.gov.uk/strategy-performance-and-research/performance/corporate-
services/ human-resources-performance  

Cllr Roddie Mackay Malcolm Burr
Leader Chief Executive

24 September 2018 24 September 2018
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. General Principles
The Annual Accounts have been prepared on an Income and Expenditure basis in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  The service headings under which the expenditure is
analysed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are those recommended by the Service Reporting
Code of Practice.  The accounts have been prepared under the historic cost convention, other than changes resulting
from the revaluation of certain categories of fixed assets and the valuation of financial investments and pension
liabilities.

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.  In
particular:

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the service or goods are
provided;

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.  Where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their use, they are carried as stock on the Balance Sheet;

 Works are charged as expenditure when completed, before which they are carried as work in progress; and

 Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or
creditor for the corresponding amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.

3. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services are charged with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year –
depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses (where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve
with which these can be offset) and amortisation of intangible assets.

The Comhairle is not required to raise council tax receipts to fund these costs. However, it is required to make an
annual contribution from revenue towards Loans Fund principal repayments (The Comhairle operates a Loans Fund,
under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975, to finance capital expenditure). The difference
between the depreciation and impairment charges and the principal repayments are adjusted by way of a transaction
between the Capital Adjustment Account and the Movement in the Reserves Statement.

4. Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability for another.
The extent to which this impacts on the Comhairle’s accounts is as follows:

Financial Liabilities (borrowings, creditors and guarantees) – these are initially measured at fair value and carried
at their amortised cost.  Annual charges for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied
by the effective interest rate.  This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable plus accrued interest.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement, except where repurchase has taken place as
part of a restructuring that involves the modification or exchange of existing loans.  In such cases, the premium or
discount is reflected in the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and written down to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement over the life of the loan.  Where premiums and discounts have been charged in this
manner, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund to be spread over future years, through the Movement in
Reserves Statement and the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.

Financial Assets (investment, loans, debtors) – these are initially measured at fair value and carried at their
amortised cost.  Annual credits for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset, multiplied by the
effective interest rate.  This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
receivable plus accrued interest.  The long term investment in respect of An Lanntair is valued at cost less
depreciation.  Due to the nature of the investment this valuation is deemed more appropriate than market value.

The Comhairle has made some loans at below market rates to a variety of borrowers, mainly for the purposes of
supporting businesses.  Such lending is classified as “soft” loans.  These are included within Long Term Debtors in the
Balance Sheet.  They are initially measured at amortised cost and provision is made for any potential non-payment.
The Comhairle applies de-minimus principles to low value advances or where there has not been a significant
discounting of interest rates when determining whether to restate at fair value.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the
contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service or the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.  The impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.
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5. Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under statute
This is expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but which does not
result in the creation of a fixed asset, as the costs have been charged to the relevant service revenue account.  Any
such charges are reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the level of the council
tax.  These are generally capital grants paid to community bodies to part fund specific projects and are permitted under
Scottish Government Circular 03/2009.

6. Capital Expenditure
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis,
providing the fixed asset yields benefit for more than one year to the Comhairle and the services it provides.  Routine
repairs and maintenance of fixed assets is charged directly to service revenue accounts.

7. Government Grants and Contributions
Grants and third party contributions are recognised as due to the Comhairle when there is reasonable assurance that
conditions attached to the payments are complied with or the payment has been received amounts are not credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until any conditions are met.  Where conditions have not been
satisfied, monies are carried as creditors in the Balance Sheet, and credited to the relevant service line (revenue
grants) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and capital grants).  Where capital
grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are reversed out in the Movement
in Reserves Statement, as these should not affect the General Fund balance.

8. Inventory
The Code requires stocks to be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  Stocks and stores held by the
Comhairle at the year end are valued at average cost price.  This does not have a material effect on the figures
disclosed in the accounts.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
item will flow to the Comhairle and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does
not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

 the purchase price; and

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value.  The valuation of work-in-progress is 
based on cost plus an appropriate proportion of overheads, together with attributable profits and allowances for 
foreseeable losses. 

Plant, furniture and computer equipment costing less than £10,000 are not treated as fixed assets but are charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  This de-minimus level does not apply where certain 
categories of these assets are grouped together and form part of the approved capital programme.  

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost; and

 all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
Operational assets are shown at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value in existing
use.  Non-operational assets are shown at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value.

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated 
replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.  

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying 
amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years.   
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  
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Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against that balance (up to the value of the accumulated gains); and

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  Where 
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the 
shortfall.  Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation 
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.  

Disposals 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  The asset is revalued immediately 
before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
previously losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on Assets 
Held for Sale.  Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether 
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals, if 
any, are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or 
loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.  

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, 
and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Comhairle’s underlying need to borrow 
(the capital financing requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life 
(.i.e. freehold land), investment properties and assets that are not yet available for use (.i.e. assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the estimated useful life of the property (30 to 60
years*);

 vehicles, plant and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful economic life of the asset (up to 20
years);

 infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the estimated useful life of the asset (20 to 60 years);

 leased assets – straight-line allocation over the period of the lease;

 Community assets – straight-line allocation over 20 years; and

 Landfill Sites – straight-line allocation over estimated useful life.

* For schools built as part of the Western Isles Schools Programme the estimated useful life of some of the
components, such as the main structure, is 80 years.

General Fund services are charged with depreciation, where appropriate, for the use of assets no matter how they are 
financed.  Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
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10. Heritage Assets
The Museum’s collections of Heritage Assets are held in support of the primary objective of documenting and
interpreting the archaeology and history of the Outer Hebrides, its Gaelic culture, traditions and the crofting way of life.
The principal collection is in the field of social history, with holdings ranging across a number of themes: agriculture,
domestic life, tweed and cloth production, fishing and maritime life and island crafts.  The Museum also holds strong
collections reflecting the rich archaeological past of the islands, civic archive and important postal history materials.  Its
visual arts collections are small, reflecting the limited place of the pictorial arts of the local culture in the past.

Detailed policies and procedures for conservation, loans, collections care, security, documentation, entry, acquisition,
movement & control cataloguing and exit can be found at www.cne-siar.gov.uk  The collections are valued by a
combination of fair values as determined by the Museum Conservation Officer, Insurance Values, and Market Values
as determined by an external valuer.  The collections are accounted for as follows:

Paintings
Paintings are valued at market value by an external valuer, Rupert Maas, and are deemed to have undetermined lives
and a high residual value so it is not considered appropriate to charge depreciation.  Acquisitions are made by
purchase or donation.  Purchases are recorded at cost and donations at fair value ascertained by the Museum’s
curatorial team with reference to commercial markets using recent transaction information from auctions where
available.

Social History and Contemporary Artefacts
Obtaining an external valuation for the collections of artefacts would involve disproportionate cost because of the
diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable market values and so the initial measurement of these
artefacts, carried out by the Museum Conservation Officer, is at fair value.  The exceptions to this are where items are
purchased and are recorded at cost or are donated and the Museum’s Curator is able to estimate current value.  The
artefacts are deemed to have an undetermined lives and a high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate
to charge depreciation.

Archaeological Artefacts
Obtaining an external valuation for the collections of artefacts would involve disproportionate cost because of the
diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable market values and so the initial measurement, carried out
by the Museum Conservation Officer, is at fair value.  The artefacts are deemed to have an undetermined lives and a
high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate to charge depreciation.

Archives
Occasionally where an item is of doubtful provenance or is unsuitable for public display it may be disposed of.
Proceeds are reported in the Income and Expenditure Account and are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.
Purchases are recorded at cost and donations at fair value ascertained by the Museum’s curatorial team.  Items are
deemed to have an undetermined lives and a high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate to charge
depreciation.

Regalia
The valuation of the chains of office was carried out by an external jewellery assessor and is based on replacement
cost.  The valuation of the swords was carried out by the conservation officer based on discussions with and
information provided by the manufacturer and militaria auctioneers and also reflect the rarity value, as a sword of peace
has never come up for public sale.  These items are not depreciated as their value is likely to increase with the
passage of time.

11. Intangible Assets
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Comhairle as a result of past
events are capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible
asset to the Comhairle.  Note 13 to the Accounts gives details of the Comhairle’s intangible assets which consist of
software licences and Fishing Quota.

Intangible Assets are recognised initially at cost.  Amounts are revalued annually where the fair value of the assets can
be determined by reference to an active market.  Fishing Quota meets this criterion.  The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.  Similarly, any impairment is also charged to the relevant service.  Any gain or loss on disposal
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation and other
gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  These are therefore reversed out
to the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions on an instant access basis. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature within in three months from the date of commencement and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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13. Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that places an obligation on the Comhairle that is likely to require
a financial settlement, but where the timing and actual value of the settlement are uncertain.  Provisions are charged to
the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Comhairle becomes aware of the obligation and actual
payments in settlement are charged directly to the provision in the Balance Sheet.  Details are given in Note 20.

14. Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Contingent Assets and Liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed as a note to the
accounts where they are deemed material.

15. Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts
Separate provisions have been made for bad and doubtful debtors under the headings:

 Community Charge

 Council Tax

 Sundry Debtors

 Business loans

 Charges on Properties

The source for these provisions is the appropriate Income Account with regard to Community Charge, Council Tax, and 
Non-Domestic Rates and the various service accounts on the basis of throughput for sundry debtors and charges on 
properties.  

16. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Authority as Lessee

Operating Leases - rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg, there is
a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  The main assets leased by the Comhairle are vehicles, plant
and property.  The risks and rewards of ownership, along with the title of the assets, remain with the lessor.

Finance Leases – property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum
lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial
direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability.  Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they
incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the lease
liability; and

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to 
such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated 
useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period). 

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on 
leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital 
investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are 
therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with 
the Capital Adjustment Account in Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
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The Authority as Lessor 

Operating Leases – where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the 
lease).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

Finance Leases – where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the lease, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written 
off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment in the lease is credited to the same line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the 
Balance Sheet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor (together with
any premiums received); and

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to 
increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt.  Where a premium has been 
received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future 
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.   

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided 
for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment 
Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

17. Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employment – benefits due to be settled within 12 months of the year end.  These include
wages and salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and bonuses.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements
due to employees but not taken before the year end.  This is charged to services but then reversed out through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged in the year they occur.

Termination Benefits – these are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Comhairle to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy.  These are
charged to Non Distributed Costs in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Comhairle is
demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of an officer or making an offer to encourage voluntary
redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund to be
charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or employee in the year, not the amount payable under relevant
accounting standards.

Post Employment Benefits
The Comhairle participates in two pension schemes, The Local Government Pension Scheme which is administered by
The Highland Council, and the Teachers Scheme, both of which provide defined benefits to members.  However, the
liabilities of the Teachers Scheme cannot be identified specifically to the Comhairle, therefore the scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contributions scheme.  The Comhairle does not recognise assets or liabilities related to the
scheme, as the liability for payment of pensions rests ultimately with the Scottish Government.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme - this is an unfunded scheme administered by the Scottish Government who sets the
contribution rate based on a notional fund.  The amounts included in the accounts are the contributions due in the year.
In addition the cost of pension enhancements for early retirement are included in non-distributable costs.  The scheme
is exempt from International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19) as the assets and liabilities of the scheme cannot be
reliably attributed to participating authorities.

Local Government Pension Scheme - Pensions for other employees are accounted for in accordance with IAS19.
The Comhairle has disclosed certain information regarding assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to the
pension scheme.  IAS 19 requires that an organisation must account for retirement benefits when it is committed to
giving them, even if the giving will be many years in the future.
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The liabilities of the fund attributable to the Comhairle are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits 
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and projections of 
earnings for current employees.  Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate of 2.7% 
based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds. 

The assets of the fund attributable to the Comhairle are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value, principally the 
bid price for quoted securities, and estimated fair value for unquoted securities. 

The change in the net pension liability is also recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Current service costs, which represent the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year are 
charged to the relevant service line and past service cost, which relate to adjustments relating to previous years are 
charged to Non Distributed Costs. Net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income line. Re-measurements, comprising of the return on scheme assets and actuarial gains and losses 
arising from differences in assumptions compared to actual events, are charged to the Pension Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

Statutory provisions require that the amount charged to the General Fund is the actual amount paid by the Comhairle 
during the year and not the amount calculated using accounting standards. This is adjusted through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and the Pension Reserve. 

18. Significant Trading Operations
The Local Government Scotland Act 2003 required Local Authorities to report “separately on significant trading
operations”.  Each Significant Trading Operation must break even over a rolling three year period.  During 2017/18
none of the trading operations were classified as significant.

19. Reserves
The Comhairle has a number of Reserve Funds.  The Capital Fund represents proceeds from the disposal of assets
and may be used to finance capital expenditure or the repayment of debt.  The Capital Receipts Reserve is the
proceeds from the sale of fixed assets and is available to meet future capital investment.

The Capital Adjustment Account and the Revaluation Reserve are used to manage the accounting processes for non-
current assets and do not represent usable resources for the Comhairle.  The former accounts for the timing
differences arising from the accounting arrangements for the consumption of non-current assets and the financing of
the acquisition, construction and enhancement of these assets, and the latter holds the gains arising from increases in
the value of fixed assets.

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account is used to account for the differences in statutory requirements and
proper accounting practices in respect of borrowing.  This account is used by the Comhairle mainly to manage the
premiums paid of the early redemption of long term loans.

The Pensions Reserve recognises the Comhairle’s share of the actuarial gains and losses on The Highland Council
Pension Fund and the change in the Comhairle’s share of fund’s net liability chargeable to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

20. Events after the Reporting Period
These are events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. An adjustment is made to the statements where there is
evidence that the event relates to the reporting period, otherwise the statements are not adjusted, and where the
amount is material, a disclosure is made in the notes.

21. Prior Period Adjustments and Changes in Accounting Policy
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policy or to correct a material error. Changes
in accounting policy are applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors identified in prior period figures are corrected
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

22. VAT
Income and Expenditure excludes any amount related to VAT, as this is payable or recoverable to/from HM Revenue
and Customs.
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

2017/18 General 
Fund

Capital 
Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2017 23,164 106 320 217 23,807 55,380 79,187

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (3,525) -         - -           (3,525) 85,203 81,678

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulation 
(Note 7) 1,937 -         2,139 75 4,151 (4,151) -            

(1,588) -         2,139 75 626 81,052 81,678

Balance at 31 March 2018 21,576 106 2,459 292 24,433 136,432 160,865

2016/17 Comparative Figures General 
Fund

Capital 
Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2016 21,720 106 3,138 45 25,009 93,582 118,591

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (7,942) -         - -           (7,942) (31,462) (39,404)

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulation 
(Note 7) 9,386 -         (2,818) 172 6,740 (6,740) -            

1,444 -         (2,818) 172 (1,202) (38,202) (39,404)

Balance at 31 March 2017 23,164 106 320 217 23,807 55,380 79,187

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Comhairle, analysed into "usable reserves"
(those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision
of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund for council
tax setting purposes. The net increase/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund
balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Comhairle.

Net Increase/(Decrease) during 2016/17

Net Increase/(Decrease) during 2017/18

37



COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 Service £'000 £'000 £'000

50,836 (4,630) 46,206 Education and Children's Services 50,716 (5,012) 45,704

17,366 (6,688) 10,678 Development 13,601 (6,053) 7,548

48,958 (25,110) 23,848 Health and Social Care 49,410 (27,536) 21,874

4,807 (727) 4,080 Chief Executive's 4,792 (751) 4,041

12,271 (6,327) 5,944 Finance and Corporate Resources 11,572 (5,671) 5,901

24,371 (5,453) 18,918 Technical Services 26,925 (5,695) 21,230

158,609 (48,935) 109,674 Cost of Services 157,016 (50,718) 106,298

2,004 -          2,004 Other Operating Expenditure (Note 8) 188 -          188

11,530 (273) 11,257 Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (Note 9) 12,235 (249) 11,986

-        (114,993) (114,993) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (Note 10) -          (114,947) (114,947)

172,143 (164,201) 7,942 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 169,439 (165,914) 3,525

(13,909) (Surplus)/Deficit on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (Note 21) (4,992)

45,371 Remeasurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) (Note36) (80,211)

31,462 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (85,203)

39,404 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (81,678)

2016/17 2017/18

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Comhairle raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Note 7 to the Accounts
gives details on the adjustments between the statutory and funding basis.
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BALANCE SHEET

£'000 £'000

309,455 Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 11) 313,711
2,092 Heritage Assets (Note 12) 2,101

376 Intangible Assets (Note 13) 378
271 Long Term Investments 257
754 Long Term Debtors (Note 14) 1,119

Long Term Assets 317,566

24,061 Short Term Investments 25,577
1,610 Assets Held for Sale (Note 18) 1,305

996 Inventories 1,040
10,785 Short Term Debtors (Note 16) 12,909

8,555 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 17) 13,890

Current Assets 54,721

(4,500) Short Term Borrowing (Note 15) (3,148)
(13,549) Short Term Creditors (Note 19) (18,532)

(37) Provisions (Note 20) (7)

Current Liabilities (21,687)

(140,540) Long Term Borrowing (Note 15) (139,042)
(1,420) Other Long Term Liabilities (Note 32) (1,396)
(1,209) Long-term Provision (Note 20) (929)

(118,513) Pension Liability (Note 36) (48,368)

Long Term Liabilities (189,735)

Net Assets 160,865

23,164 General Fund 21,576
106 Capital Fund 106
320 Capital Grants Unapplied 2,459
217 Capital Receipts 292

Usable Reserves 24,433

55,380 Unusable Reserves (Note 21) 136,432

Total Reserves 160,86579,187

The Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Comhairle. The net
assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves, which are reported in two categories. Usable reserves, which may be
used to provide services (subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use, for
example, the Capital Receipts Reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt), and unusable reserves which
cannot be used to fund services. The latter includes reserves that hold unrealisable gains and losses, for example the Revaluation
Reserve, where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line "adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulation".

24 September 2018

31/03/2018

Robert Emmott BSc CPFA
Director of Finance and Corporate Resources

The unaudited Accounts were issued on 19 June 2018 and the audited Accounts were authorised for issue on 24 September 2018.

31/03/2017

£'000

312,948

46,007

(261,682)

79,187

(18,086)

23,807
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

(7,942) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (3,525)

25,735
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 
(Note 25) 21,879

17,793 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (Note 22) 18,354

(29,282) Investing Activities (Note 23) (10,144)

(1,527) Financing Activities (Note 24) (2,875)

(13,016) Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,335

21,571 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 8,555

8,555 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Note 17) 13,890

(13,016) 5,335

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Comhairle during the reporting period. The
statement shows how these are generated and used, by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.
The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Comhairle are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing)
to the Comhairle.
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NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED 

The code requires the disclosure of information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code requires implementation from April 2018 and there is therefore 
no impact on the 2017/18 Accounts. This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 
2018/19 Code: 

 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (including amendments)

 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses; and

 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiatives

It is anticipated that these changes will not have a material impact on the financial information provided in the Accounts i.e. the 
surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services is unlikely to change. The transitional reporting requirements for IFRS 9 and 
IFRS 15 have been adopted such that the preceding year is not restated. 

NOTE 2 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

In applying the accounting policies the Comhairle has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those 
involving uncertainty about future events.  The main judgement made in the statements is in respect of the levels of future 
funding.  There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.  However, the Comhairle 
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that assets might be impaired as a result of the 
need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

NOTE 3 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Comhairle about the future 
or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other 
relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different 
from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Comhairle’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the 
forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties 
Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives 
that are dependent on assumptions about 
the level of repairs and maintenance that 
will be incurred in relation to individual 
assets.  The current economic climate 
makes it difficult for the Comhairle to 
sustain its current spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful 
lives assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of the asset is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls. It is estimated 
that the annual depreciation charge for 
buildings would increase by £249k for 
every year that useful lives had to be 
reduced. 

Pension Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgments relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on pension fund assets. 
A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 
provide the Comhairle with expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied. 

The effects on the net pension liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 
measured.  However the assumptions 
interact in complex ways.  During 2017/18 
the actuaries advised that the net pension 
liability had decreased by £66m compared 
to an increase of £51m the previous year, 
attributable to updating of the assumptions. 

Arrears At 31 March 2018 Comhairle had a 
balance of sundry debtors for £7.8m.  An 
allowance for bad and doubtful debts of 
£2.1m of the balance outstanding has been 
provided using the aged debt profile as the 
basis.  The calculation is based on 
assumed percentage recovery rates and 
this can vary, particularly when the 
economic climate is not good. 

Given the amount of outstanding debt 
which is secured against property and the 
current economic climate, the level of 
provision may not be sufficient.  However, 
the extent of the provision means that a 
significant portion of the debt is covered. 

NOTE 4   MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

Where items are not disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the nature and amount 
of material items must be disclosed.  There are no material items that are not already disclosed for 2016/17 or 2017/18. 
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NOTE 5  EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to the 

General Fund

Adjustments 
between the Funding 

and Accounting 
Basis

Net Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Statement
Service £'000 £'000 £'000

Education and Children's Services 43,362 2,342 45,704
Development 5,718 1,830 7,548
Health and Social Care 19,018 2,856 21,874
Chief Executive's 3,669 372 4,041
Finance and Corporate Resources 5,012 889 5,901
Technical Services 12,698 8,532 21,230

Net Cost of Services 89,477 16,821 106,298

Other Income and Expenditure (87,889) (14,884) (102,773)

(Surplus)/Deficit 1,588 1,937 3,525

Opening General Fund Balance (23,164)
(Surplus)/Deficit for year 1,588
Closing General Fund Balance (21,576)

Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to the 

General Fund

Adjustments 
between the Funding 

and Accounting 
Basis

Net Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Statement
Service £'000 £'000 £'000

Education and Children's Services 41,723 4,483 46,206
Development 5,490 5,188 10,678
Health and Social Care 19,358 4,490 23,848
Chief Executive's 3,883 197 4,080
Finance and Corporate Resources 5,287 657 5,944
Technical Services 11,958 6,960 18,918

Net Cost of Services 87,699 21,975 109,674

Other Income and Expenditure (89,143) (12,589) (101,732)

(Surplus)/Deficit (1,444) 9,386 7,942

Opening General Fund Balance (21,720)
(Surplus)/Deficit for year (1,444)

Closing General Fund Balance (23,164)

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government
grants, council tax and business rates) by the Comhairle in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Comhairle's services. Income and Expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2017/18

2016/17

42



NOTE 6  EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Amounts

Adjustments        for 

Capital Purposes 1

Net Change for the 
Pension 

Adjustments 2

Other 

Differences 3
Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education and Children's Services (150) 2,203 289 2,342
Development 1,143 683 4 1,830
Health and Social Care 542 2,280 34 2,856
Chief Executive's 10 361 1 372
Finance and Corporate Resources 449 436 4 889
Technical Services 7,468 1,059 5 8,532

Net Cost of Services 9,462 7,022 337 16,821

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (17,774) 3,044 (154) (14,884)

Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services (8,312) 10,066 183 1,937

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement Amounts

Adjustments        for 

Capital Purposes 1

Net Change for the 
Pension 

Adjustments 2

Other 

Differences 3
Total 

Adjustments

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education and Children's Services 3,635 944 (96) 4,483
Development 4,870 323 (5) 5,188
Health and Social Care 3,443 1,051 (5) 4,489
Chief Executive's 8 192 (3) 197
Finance and Corporate Resources 503 158 (4) 657
Technical Services 6,454 512 (5) 6,961

Net Cost of Services 18,913 3,180 (118) 21,975

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis (14,694) 2,260 (155) (12,589)

Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services 4,219 5,440 (273) 9,386

1. Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17

This column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the service line, and for:

Other Operating Expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts
written off for those assets.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing and other revenue
contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices.

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted
accounting practices. 

Adjustments Between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18
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2. Net Charges for Pension Adjustments

3. Other Differences

EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

The Comhairle's expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2016/17          
£'000 Income from Services

2017/18            
£'000

Expenditure

68,463 Employee Benefits Expenses 1
74,498

81,755 Other Services Expenses 82,807
9,212 Support Service Recharges 9,343

18,913 Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 2
9,211

11,530 Interest Payments 12,235
305 Precepts and Levies 273

2,004 Gain on the Disposal of Assets 188

192,182 Total Expenditure 188,555

Income
(62,043) Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (62,881)

(275) Interest and Investment Income (252)
(17,415) Income from Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates (18,095)

(104,507) Government Grants and Contributions (103,802)

(184,240) Total Income (185,030)

7,942 (Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services 3,525

1. The increase in employee benefits is due to the IAS 19 Pensions Adjustment of £7,021k. This is an accounting adjustment and does not

impact on the actual cash expenditure. This is also reflected in the level of support service recharges.

2. In 2016/17 there was a substantial amount of impairment and losses on revaluation of assets, which was not replicated in 2017/18.

For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to the
General Fund for the timing differences in premiums and discounts in the repayment of debt.

The charge under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income represents the difference between what is chargeable under
statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be
brought forward in future surpluses or deficits on the Income Accounts.

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 pension related expenditure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute
and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the
CIES.

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the CIES and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under
statute:
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2017/18

General 
Fund 

Balances

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied
Capital 

Fund
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement
Depreciation of non-current assets (12,811) -           -              -            12,811
Amortisation of Investments (14) -           -              -            14
Revaluation losses and Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment 3,614 -           -              -            (3,614)
Amortisation of Intangible Assets -           -              -            - 
Capital Grants and Contributions Applied 8,437 -           -              -            (8,437)
Income in relation to Donated Assets 9 -           -              -            (9)
Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (634) -           -              -            634
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 6,908 -           -              -            (6,908)
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund 216 -           -              -            (216)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 2,142 -           (2,142) -            - 
Application of grants transferred to Capital Adjustment Account -            -           3 -            (3)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of gain/loss 445           (445) -              -            - 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure -            370           -              -            (370)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Fund

Transfer of proceeds of Legal Settlement credited to Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement -            -           -              -            - 
Use of Capital Fund to finance new capital expenditure -            -           -              -            - 

Adjustments primarily involving Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to CI&E are different from costs 
charged in accordance with statute 154 -           -              -            (154)

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (9,747) -           -              -            9,747
Reversal of Teachers Pension Liability adjustment (319) -           -              -            319

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which remuneration charged to CI&E on an accruals basis is 
different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements (337) -           -              -            337

Total Adjustments (1,937) (75) (2,139) - 4,151

Usable Reserves
Movement in 

Unusable 
Reserves

NOTE 7   ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Comhairle in the year in 
accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to meet future capital and 
revenue expenditure.
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2016/17
General 

Fund 
Balances

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied
Capital 

Fund

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

Depreciation of non-current assets (11,850) -           - -              11,850
Amortisation of Investments (14) -           - -              14
Revaluation losses and Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment (7,049) -           - -              7,049
Capital Grants and Contributions Applied 8,418 -           - -              (8,418)
Income in relation to Donated Assets 15 -           - -              (15)
Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (2,175) -           - -              2,175
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 7,710 -           - -              (7,710)
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund 236 -           - -              (236)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of gain/loss 320 -           (320) -              - 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure -             -           3,138            -              (3,138)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of gain/loss 172            (172) - -              - 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure -             -           - -              - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Fund

Transfer of proceeds of Legal Settlement credited to Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement - - - - - 
Use of Capital Fund to finance new capital expenditure - - - - - 

Adjustments primarily involving Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to CI&E are different from
costs charged in accordance with statute 154 -           - -              (154)

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (5,355) -           - -              5,355
Reversal of Teachers Pension Liability adjustment (85) -           - -              85

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences 
Account

Amount by which remuneration charged to CI&E on an accruals basis
is different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements 117 -           - -              (117)

Total Adjustments (9,386) (172) 2,818 - 6,740

Usable Reserves
Movement in 

Unusable 
Reserves
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NOTE 8 OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

2,004 Gains/Losses on disposal of non-current assets 188

2,004 188

NOTE 9  FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

9,270 Interest payable and similar charges 9,191
2,260 Pension interest costs and expected return on pension assets 3,044
(273) Interest receivable and similar income (249)

11,257 11,986

NOTE 10 TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

(9,324) Council Tax income (10,145)
(8,092) Non Domestic Rates (7,962)

(88,826) General Revenue Grant (86,251)
(8,751) Capital grants and contributions (10,589)

(114,993) (114,947)
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NOTE 11   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Other Land 
and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant & 

Equipment
Infra-

structure
Community 

Assets
Surplus 
Assets

Assets Under 
Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2017 204,697 31,874 171,773 748 113 203 409,408
Additions 2,847 1,015 4,010 192 -              976 9,040
Revaluation increases recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 5,869 - - - -              - 5,869
Revaluation (decreases) in the surplus/(deficit) on the 
provision of services (4,023) - - - -              - (4,023)
Derecognition - disposals - (1,018) - - -              - (1,018)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (400) - - - -              - (400)

0

At 31 March 2018 208,990 31,871 175,783 940 113 1,179 418,876

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2017 8,358 19,668 71,342 583 2             - 99,953
Depreciation Charge 5,333 2,834 4,598 46 -              - 12,811
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve (4,733) - - - -              - (4,733)
Depreciation written out to the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services (1,856) - - - -              - (1,856)
Derecognition - disposals - (994) - - -              - (994)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (15) - - - -              - (15)

At 31 March 2018 7,087 21,508 75,940 629 2 - 105,166

Net Book Value
Assets Owned 200,324 10,363 99,843 311 111 1,179 312,131
Assets Leased 1,580 -             -           - -          - 1,580
At 31 March 2018 201,904 10,363 99,843 311 111 1,179 313,711

Assets Owned 195,043 12,206 100,431 165 111 203 308,159
Assets Leased 1,296 - - - -              - 1,296
At 31 March 2017 196,339 12,206 100,431 165 111 203 309,455

Total PPE 
£'000

Movements in 2017/18
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Other 
Land and 
Buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant & 

Equipment
Infra-

structure
Community 

Assets
Surplus 
Assets

Assets Under 
Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2016 178,509 30,251 168,582 738 113 16,831 395,024
Additions 1,916 2,043 3,191 10 -              9,888 17,048
Revaluation increases recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 11,007 - - - - - 11,007
Revaluation (decreases) in the surplus/(deficit) 
on the provision of services (9,541) - - - -              - (9,541)
Derecognition - disposals (2,425) (420) - - -              - (2,845)
Derecognition - other - - - - -              - -               
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (1,285) - - - -              - (1,285)
Transfer 26,516 - - - -              (26,516) -               

0

At 31 March 2017 204,697 31,874 171,773 748 113 203 409,408

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2016 10,406 17,325 66,861 544 2             - 95,138
Depreciation Charge 4,586 2,745 4,481 39 - - 11,851
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 
Reserve (4,426) - - - -              - (4,426)
Depreciation written out to the surplus /deficit on 
the provision of services (1,480) - - - -              - (1,480)
Derecognition - disposals (618) (402) - - -              - (1,020)
Derecognition - other - - - - -              - -
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (110) - - - -              - (110)
Other movements in depreciation - - - - -              - -               

At 31 March 2017 8,358 19,668 71,342 583 2 0 99,953

Net Book Value
Assets Owned 195,043 12,206 100,431 165 111 203 308,159
Assets Leased 1,296 - - - -              - 1,296
At 31 March 2017 196,339 12,206 100,431 165 111 203 309,455

Assets Owned 166,754 12,926 101,721 194 111 16,831 298,537
Assets Leased 1,349 - - - -              - 1,349
At 31 March 2016 168,103 12,926 101,721 194 111 16,831 299,886

Comparative Movements in 2016/17
Total PPE 

£'000
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Revaluations

2013/14     18 Specialised and 21 non specialised properties on Berneray, North Uist and Benbecula
2014/15     16 Specialised and 33 non specialised properties in South Uist, Eriskay and Barra
2015/16     16 Specialised and 30 non specialised properties in and around Stornoway
2016/17     19 Specialised and 38 non specialised properties across the Western Isles
2017/18     17 Specialised and 28 non specialised properties on Lewis and Harris

Other Land & 
Buildings 

£'000
Vehicles & Plant 

£'000

Surplus 
Assets 

£'000

Community 
Assets 

£'000
Total 
£'000

 Valued at Historical Cost - 31,871 - 940 32,811

 Valued at Fair Value as at:
31 March 2018 55,071 55,071
31 March 2017 57,440 - - - 57,440
30 March 2016 40,478 - 50 - 40,528
31 March 2015 29,213 - 63 - 29,276
31 March 2014 26,788 - - - 26,788

208,990 31,871 113 940 241,914

Capital Commitments

NOTE 12   HERITAGE ASSETS

Paintings Social History Archaeological Archives Regalia Total
Contemporary Artefacts

Artefacts
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost / valuation 
At 1 April 2017 196 1,039 424 398 35 2,092
Additions - - - - - - 
Donations - - - 9 - 9
Revaluation increases/(decreases) - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2018 196 1,039 424 407 35 2,101

Paintings Social History Archaeological Archives Regalia Total
Contemporary Artefacts

Artefacts
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost / valuation 
At 1 April 2016 196 1,036 416 395 35 2,078
Additions - - - - - - 
Donations - 3 8 3 - 14
Revaluation increases/(decreases) - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2017 196 1,039 424 398 35 2,092

 Not included are:
a) Lending library stock used for operational purposes;
b) Historic Buildings used to provide services to the Comhairle which are included in Property, Plant and Equipment.

The basis for valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. The District Valuer has been appointed to carry out a valuation of land
and buildings assets on an annual basis. One fifth of the assets were valued in 2017/18, as at 31 March. Infrastructure assets are carried at
historic cost.

Museum Nan Eilean was established in 1983 to provide the first professional museum service for the Western Isles. This service was expanded in
1989 by the introduction of an exhibition area in Sgoil Lionacleit in Benbecula. The museum operates two stores, one at Marybank in Lewis and
another in Torlum in Uist. The Museum holds collections of artefacts, photographs, prints, paintings and archives including audio tracks illustrating
the archaeology, social, domestic and economic history of the Western Isles.

Collections were built up following the establishment of the Museum Service in 1983 with two exceptions, The Lewis Museum Trust established in
the 1950’s passed collected material to Museum Nan Eilean in 1983 and in 1999 the Calbost Collection was brought into the care and
management of Museum Nan Eilean.

The collections are valued by a combination of fair values as determined by the Museum Conservation Officer, Insurance Values, and Market
Values as determined by an external valuer on 1 April 2012.

At 31 March 2018, the Comhairle had entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in
2018/19 and future years, at a cost of £6m. Similar commitments at 31 March 2017 were £3m. 
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NOTE 13  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2016/17 2017/18
Fishing Fishing

Quota Quota
£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 336 376

Revaluation increase recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 40             2 

Balance as at 31 March 376 378

NOTE 14  LONG TERM DEBTORS

Balance Advanced
Other 

Movement Repaid Balance 
31/03/17 in Year in Year in Year 31/03/18

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

House Loans 7 - - (2) 5
Community Support Loans 256 113           - (17) 352
Charging Orders on Properties 540 - 269           - 809
Revolving Loans Pool 746 293           4 (236) 807

1,549 406           273           (255) 1,973

Less:
Charging Orders on Properties Provision (49) - 2 - (47)
Revolving Loans Pool Provision for Bad Debts (746) - (61) - (807)

754 406 214 (255) 1,119

NOTE 15   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets

The intangible assets included on the Balance Sheet are in respect of Fishing Quota (quota). A quota is the right to fish species over a defined period,
usually one year. Quotas are held by government and distributed to fishermen through Producer Organisations. Quotas for fish species most relevant to
the Western Isles have, over a period of time, been purchased by external interests with the resulting loss of control of fishing opportunities to local fishing
communities. The purchase of quota by the Comhairle enables long term access to a strategically important resource i.e. nephrops. The open market
value of the quota held at 31 March 2018 was £378k.

The definition of a financial instrument is: 'Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity'.

The term 'financial instrument' covers both financial assets and financial liabilities. These range from straightforward trade receivables and trade payables
to more complex transactions such as financial guarantees, derivatives and embedded derivatives. The Council's borrowing and investment transactions
are also classified as financial instruments.

A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Comhairle and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver
cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Comhairle.

The Comhairle's loan portfolio at year end consisted of loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and market debt. Under the Code of Practice
these forms of borrowing are measured at amortised cost. This form of measurement does not change the amount of cash paid under the terms of the
loan but can impact on the charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Comhairle that is represented by cash or other instruments or a contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset.

The three classifications for financial assets under the Code of Practice are:
Loans and Receivables;
Available for Sale; and
Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Comhairle's portfolio of investments consists of call/notice accounts. Call accounts are classed as 'Loans and Receivables' and are measured at
amortised cost. This form of measurement does not change the amount of cash received under the terms of the investment. Trade Receivables (i.e.
Trade Debtors) are classified as Loans and Receivables.  These have been measured at cost on the Balance Sheet.

The Comhairle does not have any investments required to be measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.
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The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments and Debtors
Loans and Receivables - Deposits - - 32,599 39,452       
Loans to Other Entities and Individuals 1,025           1,376         19 19              
Trade Receivables - - 1,983 1,757         

1,025           1,376         34,601        41,228       

Borrowings and Creditors
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - PWLB Borrowing 140,422 138,922     4,500 3,148         
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - Market Borrowing 118 120            - - 
Trade Payables - - 3,244 3,945         

140,540 139,042     7,744 7,093         

Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

- no early repayment or impairment is recognised
- where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to approximate to fair value

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values are calculated as follows:

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value 
Assets
Loans and receivables 32,338 32,338 39,074 39,074

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities (PWLB Loans) 143,259 252,193 140,422 238,706
Financial Liabilities (Market Loans) 118 118 120 120

31/03/2017 31/03/2018

The Comhairle's PWLB loans have been categorised as Level 2 as the fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or liability e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments. The Comhairle's market loans are not
categorised as they are assumed to be approximate to the carrying amount.

Investments are stated at their carrying amount. All Comhairle investments are short-term on call, and repayment is due on demand,
so there is no material difference between the carrying amount and the fair value.

The 2018 fair value of borrowing was calculated by reference to the premature repayment set of rates in force on 31 March 2018, the 
2017 figure by reference to the set of interest rates in force on 31 March 2017, as calculated by the PWLB. The fair value is greater
than the carrying amount because the Comhairle's borrowing figure includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is
higher than the rates available for similar loans at the balance sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above current market
rates increases the amount that the Comhairle would have to pay if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

Long Term Current

While the Comhairle has identified soft loans and loan guarantees, it is of the opinion that the effect of these on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is not material, and therefore no adjustments have been made in respect of gains or losses. No
assets have been reclassified or derecognised and there has been no impairment or early redemption recognised.

Financial assets (represented by lending and receivables) and financial liabilities (represented by borrowings) are carried in the
balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take
place over the remaining term of the instrument, using the following assumptions:
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NOTE 16   DEBTORS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

2,345 Central Government 3,112
143 Other Local Authorities 101

1,757 National Health Service 1,239
2,481 Public Corporations and Trade Funds 3,083
4,059 Other 5,374

10,785 12,909

NOTE 17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

17 Cash held by the Comhairle 16
199 Bank Current Accounts 204

8,339 Short-term Deposits 13,670

8,555 13,890

NOTE 18  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

1,292 Balance at 1 April 1,610

Assets newly classified as held for sale
1,330 Property, Plant and Equipment 404

98              Revaluation gains (99)
(760) Impairment losses - 
(350) Assets sold (610)

1,610         Balance outstanding at 31 March 1,305 

NOTE 19  CREDITORS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

2,014 Central Government 2,304
947 Other Local Authorities 974
397 National Health Service 1,236

3,244 Public Corporations and Trade Funds 4,216
6,947 Other 9,802

13,549 18,532
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NOTE 20  PROVISIONS

Balance Movement Balance
Bad Debt Provisions at 01/04/17 In Year at 31/03/18

£'000 £'000 £'000

Council Tax 1,503 35 1,538
Rents 1 - 1
Sundry Debtors 688 548 1,236
Fuel at Fishery Piers 11 (11) - 
Charges on Properties 831 (16) 815

3,034 556 3,590

Balance Movement Balance
Other Provisions at 01/04/17 In Year at 31/03/18

£'000 £'000 £'000

Current
Business Loans 1 - 1 
Social Services Salaries 25 (25) - 
Loan Guarantees 11 (5) 6

37 (30) 7

Long Term
Restoration of Landfill Sites 1,169 (280) 889
Decommissioning Costs 40 - 40

1,209 (280) 929

Business Loans This provision is in respect of non-payment of business development/support loans.

Social Services 
Salaries

Loan Guarantees

Landfill Sites

Decommissioning 

NOTE 21  UNUSABLE RESERVES

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

22,671 Revaluation Reserve 26,928 
(1,487) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (1,333)

153,656 Capital Adjustment Account 160,489 
(118,513) Pensions Reserve (48,368)

(947) Employee Statutory Adjustment Account (1,284)

55,380 Total Unusable Reserves 136,432 

Note: The Debtors figure as shown in the balance sheet is net of these provisions.

This provision represents the present value of restoration works required in 25 years time when the wind turbine at
Creed Park is decommissioned at the end of its useful life.

The Comhairle acts as guarantor for loans advanced under the Fisheries Assistance Scheme. This represents the
"fair value" of the guarantees as required by the Code.

This provision was in respect of an underpayment of enhanced hourly rates to a number of Adult Social Services staff, 
which has now been settled.

This provision represents the present value of restoration works and aftercare required for the landfill cells at
Bennadrove.
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Revaluation Reserve

2016/17
£'000 £'000 £'000

9,348 Balance at 1 April 22,671

15,610 Upward revaluation of assets 10,636

(1,701)
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the 
surplus/deficit on Provision of Services (5,642)

13,909 Surplus/deficit on the revaluation of fixed assets 4,994

(586) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (737)

22,671 Balance at 31 March 26,928

Financial Instruments Adjustments Account

2016/17
£'000 £'000 £'000

(1,641) Balance at 1 April (1,487)

- 
Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement - 

154
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged
against the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory requirements 154

154
Amount by which the finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year
in accordance with statutory requirements.

154

(1,487) Balance at 31 March (1,333)

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Comhairle arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and
Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are revalued downwards and the gains are lost or
disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Gains prior to
this are consolidated in the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory
provisions. The Comhairle uses the Account to manage premiums paid on early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are incurred but reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in
accordance with statutory arrangements for spreading the burden on council tax. In the Comhairle's case this period is the
unexpired term that was outstanding on the loans when they were redeemed. As a result the balance on the Account at 31 March
2018 will be charged to the General Fund in future years.

2017/18

2017/18
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Capital Adjustments Account

2016/17
£'000 £'000 £'000

154,642 Balance at 1 April 153,656

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(11,850) Depreciation and impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (12,811)

(14) Amortisation of Investment (14)
(7,049) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 3,612

(2,175)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
gain/loss on disposal (634)

(21,088) (9,847)
586 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 737

134,140 144,546

Capital financing applied in the year:

8,418
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 8,461

15 Donated Assets 9
3,137 Application of grants from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account 3

- Application of grants from the Capital Receipts Unapplied Account 370

236 Application of Revenue Balances 192
7,710 Statutory Provision for the financing of capital investment 6,908

19,516 15,943

153,656 Balance at 31 March 160,489

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year

2017/18

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the
consumption of non current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory
provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to historic cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Comhairle as
finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the
Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 5 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation
Reserve.
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Pensions Reserve

2016/17
£'000 £'000 £'000

(67,702) Balance at 1 April (118,513)

(45,371) Actuarial gains and losses on pension assets and liabilities 80,211

(5,440)

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (10,066)

- 
Employers pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year - 

70,145

(118,513) Balance at 31 March (48,368)

Employee Statutory Adjustment Account

2016/17
£'000 £'000 £'000

(1,065) Balance at 1 April (947)

1,065
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the
preceding year 947

(947) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (1,284)

118

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements

(337)

(947) Balance at 31 March (1,284)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing difference arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Comhairle accounts for post
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Comhairle makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.
The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the Comhairle has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding
will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

The Employee Statutory Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31
March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2017/18

2017/18
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NOTE 22  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following amounts of interest.

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

163 Interest Received 158
(9,136) Interest Paid (9,062)

(8,973) (8,904)

NOTE 23  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

(17,093) Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (9,073)
(12,361) Purchase/(Redemption) of short-term and long-term investments (1,516)

172 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 445

(29,282) Net cash flows from investing activities (10,144)

NOTE 24  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

(1,527) Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing (2,875)

(1,527) Net cash flows from financing activities (2,875)

NOTE 25  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - NON CASH MOVEMENTS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Adjustment to net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements:
11,865 Depreciation and Amortisation 12,826

7,049 Impairment and downward revaluations (3,360)
2,004 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 188

(15) Donated Assets (9)
103 Increase/(decrease) in Provisions (281)
937 Increase/(decrease) in Creditors 4,982

(1,556) (Increase)/decrease in Debtors (2,489)
(92) (Increase)/decrease in Stock (44)

5,440 IAS19 Pension Adjustment 10,066

25,735 Non Cash Movements 21,879
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NOTE 26  TRADING OPERATIONS

2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

Trading Operation
Deficit/ 

(Surplus) Expenditure Income
Deficit/ 

(Surplus)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Building Cleaning 16 997 (960) 37
Schools Catering (3) 2,072 (1,975) 97
Other Catering 39 214 (178) 36
Refuse Collection (141) 2,123 (2,091) 32
Street Cleansing (42) 432 (462) (30)
Grounds Maintenance (3) 166 (173) (7)
Fleet Management 17 1,608 (1,528) 80
Property Maintenance Delivery (27) 623 (551) 72
Highways 9 724 (752) (28)
Ice Plants 13 28 (14) 14
Fuel at Fishery Piers (2) 975 (994) (19)
Bus na Comhairle 68 1,239 (1,159) 80

(56) 11,201 (10,837) 364

NOTE 27  AGENCY SERVICES

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Lews Castle College 4,387 4,298
Hebridean Housing Partnership 1,479 1,529

5,866 5,827

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Lews Castle College 11 10
Hebridean Housing Partnership 2 3
Scottish Water - Water Charges 101 101

114 114

NOTE 28   EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Fee payable to Audit Scotland with regard to audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 194 194
Rebate in respect of previous year -            -             

194 194

The Comhairle operates a number of trading operations, none of which are classified as significant in terms of the Local Government
Scotland Act 2003.  The table below details the financial performance of each operation.

The Comhairle has entered into agreements to provide agency services to the undermentioned bodies for which costs incurred are fully
reimbursed by the body.  The amounts are not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Account.

The Comhairle collects and pays out monies on behalf of the following organisations. An administration fee is received for providing the
services.

In 2017/18, trading operation surpluses and deficits were included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) as below:
Education and Children's Services: 176k
Technical Services: 193k
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NOTE 29   MEMBERS' SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES 

Name
Salary 1 

£

Mileage 
Allowance 

£

Other 
Travel 

Expenses 
£

Subsistence 
Expenses 

£

Telephone 
& ICT 

Expenses 3 

£

Other 

Expenses 4 

£

2017/18 
Total 

£

2016/17 

Total 
£

Mr Donald Manford 16,924    1,088          1,026          1,871             545             -             21,454    18,780    
Mr Calum Macmillan 15,334    -             2,524          1,034             416             -             19,308    -          
Mr Iain A Macneil 15,334    1,523          2,605          1,858             1,038          37 22,395    -          
Mr Paul F Steele 15,334    1,247          3,357          2,818             465             235             23,456    -          
Mr Uisdean Robertson 18,779    151             6,481          4,203             1,436          15 31,065    26,155    
Mr Iain M Macleod 15,334    1,082          2,515          1,454             836             37 21,258    -          
Mr Roddy Mackay 15,334    538             2,052          1,721             505             30 20,180    -          
Mr Finlay Cunningham 15,334    616             235             258 404             15 16,862    -          
Mr John G Mitchel 15,334    2,415          430             - 340             15 18,534    -          
Mr Paul A Finnegan 15,334    2,032          160             398 463             -             18,387    -          
Mr Norman A Macdonald 21,031    5,506          10,462        2,902             765             1,839          42,505    41,973    
Mr Alasdair R Fraser 15,334    703             -             - 340             -             16,377    -          
Mr Angus Morrison 18,773    1,166          -             - 454             -             20,393    18,249    
Mr Finlay M Stewart 15,334    -             -             - 420             15 15,769    -          
Mr Norman Macdonald 15,334    -             -             - 340             22 15,696    -          
Mr Alasdair Macleod 19,041    -             2,324          405 120             15 21,905    19,824    
Mr Keith Dodson 15,334    -             -             - 340             30 15,704    -          
Mr Angus McCormack 18,978    32 2,008          527 190             31 21,767    20,013    
Mr Charles Nicolson 16,924    -             752             193 422             441             18,731    18,239    
Mr Rae Mackenzie 16,924    -             -             - 251             24 17,198    17,076    
Mr Roddie Mackay 27,013    -             5,596          1,749             48 15 34,421    20,364    
Mr Neil Mackay 15,334    -             -             - 857             15 16,206    -          
Mr Iain M Macaulay 16,924    -             -             - 574             -             17,498    16,915    
Mr Gordon Murray 16,924    -             -             - 698             288             17,910    17,684    
Mr John A Maciver 16,924    897             117             120 158             -             18,217    17,830    
Mr Calum Maclean 15,334    -             -             - 415             -             15,749    -          
Mr Donald F Crichton 18,779    -             1,448          489 647             -             21,363    19,059    
Mr John Mackay 2 19,041    694             680             (247) 404             -             20,572    21,246    
Mr Kenneth Macleod 16,924    1,192          -             - 545             15 18,676    18,351    
Mr Kenny John Macleod 17,190    702             1,635          190 439             15 20,172    -          
Mr John N Macleod 16,924    202             -             - 349             -             17,475    17,627    

Mr David Blaney 1,544      142             40 195 14 -             1,935      21,075    
Mr Ronald Mackinnon 1,544      265             153             50 (144) -             1,868      22,662    
Mr Donnie Steele 1,544      8 -             - 113             -             1,665      20,294    
Mr Neil Macdonald Beaton 1,544      385             133             84 (69) -             2,077      19,781    
Mr Andrew Walker 1,544      115             -             - 67 -             1,726      21,148    
Mr Philip Mclean 1,544      -             -             - 80 -             1,624      18,156    
Miss Catherine Macdonald 1,544      173             -             84 38 -             1,839      18,942    
Mr Donald John Macrae 1,544      -             -             - 66 -             1,610      18,788    
Mr Donald Macleod 1,544      343             -             - 52 -             1,939      17,470    
Mr Norman M Macleod 1,737      -             -             - 93 -             1,830      22,371    
Mrs Angusina Stewart 1,544      -             -             - 19 -             1,563      17,058    
Mr Angus Campbell 2,573      -             67 43 190             -             2,873      45,182    
Mr Iain Mackenzie 1,544      -             -             - 91 -             1,635      16,939    
Mrs Catriona Stewart 1,737      65 -             - (237) -             1,565      21,612    
Mr Alistair Maclennan 1,544      -             -             - 110             -             1,654      17,096    

Total 553,268 23,282 46,800 22,399 15,707 3,149 664,605 647,958

1 The salary figures exclude Apprenticeship Levy, Employer's National Insurance and Superannuation contributions.
2 Allowance for Vice-convenor of Joint Valuation Board not included; figures published by Highland Council.

4 The Other Allowances and Expenses are principally conference fees and printing expenses.

3 The Telephone and ICT Expenses include telephone and computer hardware replacements as they require to be replaced, these totals also include 
the costs associated with an additional line where broadband is not available and is exclusive of personal calls.
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NOTE 30  RELATED PARTIES

Relationship 2017/18      
£'000        

Income

2017/18         
£'000   

Expenditure

2017/18         
£'000      

Debtors

2017/18       
£'000    

Creditors

Angus Campbell Ltd Note 1 Director -                    17 -                     -                     
Lochs Services Ltd  Note 1 Director -                    9 -                     -                     
Neil Mackay & Co Ltd Note 2 Director -                    39 -                     -                     
Uig Community Co-operative Shareholder 12 -                     -                     

-                    77                       -                     -                     

2017/18      
£'000        

Income

2017/18         
£'000   

Expenditure

2017/18         
£'000      

Debtors

2017/18       
£'000    

Creditors

16,748              19,874                -                     3,126                 

The Comhairle is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the potential
to control or influence the Comhairle or to be controlled or influenced by the Comhairle. Disclosure of these transactions
allows readers to assess the extent to which the Comhairle might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Comhairle.

Central and Scottish Government
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Comhairle, providing the statutory framework
within which the Comhairle operates as well as providing the majority of funding in the form of grants, as detailed in Note 31.

Companies and Joint Boards
The Comhairle is deemed to have a controlling interest in Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP), the company that was set up to
manage the design, construction and lifecycle maintenance of the schools being built as part of the Western Isles Schools
Project. It also has an interest in Highlands and Islands Valuation Joint Board, further details of which can be found in the
group accounts which are set out within these statements.

Members
Members of the Comhairle have direct control over the financial and operating policies of the Authority. The total of
Members' allowances paid in 2017/18 is as detailed in Note 29. The Comhairle holds a Register of Members' Interests which
is available on the Comhairle website. The Register details the bodies where members are represented or for which they
have declared an interest. During 2017/18, works and services to the value of £77k were commissioned from companies in
which three Members had a financial interest, as detailed in the table below. These companies had no outstanding
balances at the year end. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Comhairle's standing orders and
transactions conducted at arms length on the same terms and conditions as other transactions.

Pension Fund
The Comhairle is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Highland Council and has made
payments as shown in Note 36.

Officers
There were no material related parties declared by officers in the Register of Employee Interests.

Other Public Bodies
The Comhairle and Western Isles NHS work together on a number of projects: mainly receiving income for care and services
in the community, and paying expenditure towards community occupational therapy equipment and services. The total
income received from Western Isles NHS was £5,436k in 2017/18 (£4,770k in 2016/17) and total expenditure of £1,386k was 
paid to Western Isles NHS in 2017/18 ( £613k in 2016/17).

Integrated Joint Board
The Western Isles Integrated Joint Board is deemed to be a related party of the Comhairle, mainly through the Comhairle's
ability to exert influence over the entity through its representation on the Board. The relevant transactions and balances with
the Integrated Joint Board are:

Note 1: Relates to transactions prior to 4 May 2017 before Local Government Elections
Note 2: Relates to transactions after 4 May 2017 following Local Government Elections

Western Isles Integration Joint Board
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NOTE 31  GRANT INCOME

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
General Revenue Grant 88,826 86,251
Scottish Government - Capital Grants 6,817 9,958
Other Capital Grants and Contributions 1,934 631
Non Domestic Rates 8,092 7,962

105,669 104,802

Credited to Services
DWP Grants 5,336 5,144
Specific Grants for Gaelic Education 980 981
Community Service Order Grant 337 357
European funding 427 1,064
Scottish Government - Other Revenue Grants 6,604 6,772

13,684 14,318

119,353 119,120

NOTE 32 LEASES

Finance Lease

Minimum Lease 
Payment at 

31/03/17

Minimum Lease 
Payment at 

31/03/18
£'000 £'000

1,439                  1,396
2,622                  2,325

4,061                  3,721

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment 
Finance Lease 

Liability Finance Cost
£'000 £'000 £'000

154 24 130
654 124 530

2,913 1,340 1,573

3,721 1,488 2,233

Operating Leases

Comhairle as a Lessor
Actual Income 

From Leases 
2017/18

Income due 
2018/19

Income due 
2019/20 to 

2021/22

Amounts Due 
2022 and after

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Land and Buildings (365) (243) (671) (195)

(365) (243) (671) (195)

Comhairle as a Lessee
Actual Spend 

2017/18
Committed 

2018/19
Expiring 
2018/19

Amounts due 
2019/20 to 

2021/22

Amounts Due 
2022 and after

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Buildings 217 232 -                 657 195                    
Vehicles & Equipment 97 52 19 63 -                     

314 284 19 720 195

The following grants and contributions were credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during 2017/18:

The Comhairle acquired a finance lease for the Stornoway Library in 2012/13. The Library was valued at £1.242m in 2017/18 by the
District Valuer and is carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet. The Comhairle is committed to making minimum
payment under this lease comprising settlement of the long term liability for the interest of the property, and finance costs that will be
payable by the Comhairle in future years while the liability remains outstanding.

The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Asset: 
Stornoway Library

Minimum Lease Payment

Finance Lease Liability
Finance Costs

Asset: 
Stornoway Library

Within one year
Between 2 and 5 years
Greater than 5 years
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2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 139,896 137,484
Capital Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 17,048 9,040
Assets Held for Sale 45 4
Other 4 - 

17,097 9,044

Sources of Finance
Capital Income

Government Grants and Other Capital Contributions (8,426) (8,437)
Prior Year Government Grants (3,137) (3)
Applied Receipts - (370)

Reduction of Landfill Provision - (251)
Sums Set Aside from Revenue

Loans Fund Principal (7,710) (6,908)
Capital Financed From Current Revenue (236) (216)

(19,509) (16,185)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 137,484 130,343

Movement in Year - represented by a decrease in underlying need to borrow 2,412 7,141

NOTE 34  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

NOTE 35  TERMINATION BENEFITS

NOTE 36  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation in Pension Schemes

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported Cost of Services when they are earned by the Comhairle's employees, rather
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge that is statutorily required to be made against the Council
Tax is based upon the pension contributions payable by the Comhairle in the year, and an adjustment is made in the Movement in
Reserves Statement to achieve this.

NOTE 33  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

The Comhairle recognised no impairment losses in 2017/18 or in 2016/17.

During 2017/18 the Comhairle granted early retirement or redundancy to 16 teachers and 8 other members of staff (11 teachers and 17
other staff in 2016/17), incurring liabilities of £891k (£601k, 2016/17). Of this total, £688k (£427k 2016/17) is payable to teachers in the
form of compensation for loss of office and enhanced pension benefits. The total cost incurred in respect of the 8 other staff members was
£203k (£174k, 2016/17).

The post-employment scheme for employees other than teachers is the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by
Highland Council. The Local Government Pension Scheme is a multi-employer, defined benefit scheme in which it is possible for an
employer to identify its share of the assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis. This is a "funded" defined benefit career
average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme, meaning that Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and its employees pay contributions into a fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liability with investment assets.

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, changes to inflation,
bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts due by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used to
finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years, by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Comhairle, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
historically by the Comhairle that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed below.
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Post-Employment Benefits

Cost of Services
Current Service Cost
Past Service Costs
Curtailments and Settlements

Financing and Investment

Net Interest Expense

Net Charge to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services

Other Costs to CIE

Expected return on assets in the scheme

Actuarial (gains) or losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains) or losses arising on changes of financial assumptions

Other Experience

Total Charges to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement

Amount Charged to General Fund: Employers' Contributions 

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Present value of the defined benefit obligation*
Fair value of pension fund assets
Net Liability arising from Defined Benefit Obligation
*Unfunded liabilities included in the figure for present value of liabilities
Unfunded liabilities for Pension Fund

1 April
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Contributions by Pension Fund participants
Re-measurement gains and (losses)
   actuarial gains/(losses) from changes in demographic assumptions
   actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions
   other experience
Benefits paid
Past Service Costs
Curtailments and Settlements

Closing Value at 31 March

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

13,852

- - 

500

2,030
10,089

(49,230)

10,054

(7,249) (8,062)

383,046

6

(113,887)

213

(331,433)
288,010

2,092

383,046 331,433

269,159

(50,726) 70,385

2017/18

£'000

9,665

9,665 13,852

- - 

2,260 3,044

213 6

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

- 

500

(1,227)

(49,230)

12,138 16,902

(19,098)

(36,776) (10,577)

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS19

(19,098)81,647

(43,423)

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the local authority's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as
follows:

Pensions Assets & Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
£'000

(3,623)

286,151

6,783

- (1,227)

7,155

Reconciliation of Present Value of Scheme Liabilities:
Funded Liabilities: Local Government 

Pension Scheme    £'000

(4,574)

31/03/2018

81,647

57,509 (63,230)

2016/17

(383,046)

31/03/2017
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1 April
Interest income
Re-measurement gains and (losses)
   Expected rate of return on pension fund assets
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employers
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid

Closing Value at 31 March

£'000 % £'000 %

Cash and cash equivalents 5,920 2% 7,238 3%

Equity instruments [by industry type]
   Consumer 28,865 11% 39,775 14%
   Manufacturing 31,646 12% 17,812 6%
   Energy & utilities 9,909 4% 8,737 3%
   Financial institutions 26,175 10% 32,126 11%
   Health & care 7,774 3% 6,531 2%
   Information Technology 20,523 7% 25,681 9%
   Other 933 - 6,994 2%
Sub-total equity 125,825 47% 137,656 47%

Bonds
   Corporate (investment grade) - - 18,178 6%
   UK Government 13,057 5% 26,163 9%
   Other - - 8,287 3%
Sub-total bonds 13,057 5% 52,628 18%

Property
   UK Property 29,790 11% 26,119 9%
   Overseas Property 678 - 279 -
Sub-total property 30,468 11% 26,398 9%

Private equity 12,543 5% 12,907 5%

Other investment funds - Equities 48,251 18% 51,183 18%
Other investment funds - Bonds 33,095 12% - -

Total assets 269,159 100% 288,010 100%

(7,249)

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Scheme Assets:

6,783 7,155

2017/18

222,990 269,159

36,776
- 

Local Government Pension Scheme   
£'000

269,159 288,010

10,656

2,030 2,092
(8,062)

2016/17

- 

7,829 7,010

Analysis of Pension Fund's Assets
31/03/17 31/03/18
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Basis for Estimating Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
                                               Men
                                               Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
                                               Men
                                               Women
Rate of inflations:
Rate of increase in prices
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Fund

1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% 13,492
0.5%  increase in Salary Increase Rate 2% 6,017
0.5% increase in Pension Increase Rate 8% 27,171
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rates 10% 33,737

The total contributions expected to be made by the Comhairle to the Local Government Pension Fund in the year to 31 March 2018 is
£6.9 million.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for Fund members is 19.4 years.

The Comhairle's share of the liabilities of the Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method, that estimates then pension that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality
rates, salary levels and so on. The Funds liabilities have been assessed by Hyman Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, and
the estimates are based on the latest full valuation of the fund at 31 March 2017.  

The Local Government Pension Fund has an asset and liability matching strategy (ALM) that matches, to the extent possible, the
types of assets invested to the liabilities in the defined benefit obligation. The Fund has matched assets to the pensions' obligations
by investing in long-term fixed interest securities and index linked gilt edged investments with maturities that match the benefits
payments as they fall due. A large proportion of the assets relate to equities (70%) and bonds (18%). The comparative year's figures
were 70% and 17%. The scheme also invests in properties (9%) and in cash (3%). The ALM strategy is monitored annually or more
frequently if necessary.

The objectives of the Fund are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The Fund has agreed a strategy
with the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding rate of 100%. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The latest triennial
valuation was completed on 31 March 2017.

Local Government Pension 
Scheme          

2016/17 2017/18

21.9
24.1

26.1

24.3

26.8

22.5

24.7 23.3

2.4% 2.4%
4.4% 3.4%
2.4% 2.4%

2.6% 2.7%
50% 50%

Assumption Amount
% £'000

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based in reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The
methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous
period.

Monetary  % Increase in
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Teachers' Pension Scheme

NOTE 37 INTEREST IN COMPANIES

NOTE 38 SIGNING OF ACCOUNTS

In 2017/18, the Comhairle paid £2.414m (£2.351m in 2016/17) to the Scottish Government in respect of teachers' retirement
benefits. The pension contribution rate increased from 14.9% to 17.2% on the 1 September 2015. From 1 April 2012 the
government introduced a tiered system of member contribution rates, based on an employees full time equivalent pensionable
pay. These rates range from 7.2% for those on £26,259 or less to 11.9% for those on £75,750 and above. There were no
contributions remaining payable at the year-end. In addition, the Comhairle is responsible for all pension payments arising from
added years awards to staff taking early retirement. In 2017/18 these amounted to £535,611 (£480,878 in 2016/17). Included in
this figure were lump sum payments of £94,944 (£61,830 2016/17).

Teachers employed by the authority are members of the Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by The Scottish Public
Pensions Agency (SPPA), an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. It provides teachers with defined benefits upon their
retirement, and the Comhairle contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members'
pensionable salaries.  The last actuarial valuation was undertaken at 31 March 2012.

The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the Scheme is unfunded and the SPPA uses a notional fund as
the basis for calculating the employers' contribution rate paid by local authorities. The Comhairle is not able to identify its share of
the underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the
purposes of these Annual Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

Copies of the accounts are available from the Director of Finance, Highland Council, Glenurquhart Road, Inverness,  IV3 5NX.

Copies of the accounts are available from Sgoiltean Ùra LLP, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1
2BW.

The Comhairle also holds 20% voting rights on the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board, which is included in the
group accounts as an associate.

Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean Siar, the Integration Joint Board for health and social care services for Comhairle nan Eilean Siar
and NHS Western Isles was formally established on 1 April 2016. The IJB has four voting members from each of these
organisations. The IJB is included in the group as a joint venture with a 50% share.

Copies of the accounts are available from the Chief Officer, Health and Social Care, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway,
Isle of Lewis, HS1 2BW.

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources, being the officer responsible for the Comhairle's financial affairs, signed the
Draft Annual Accounts on 19 June 2018. Events after the date of the Balance Sheet (31 March 2018), up to the date of signing,
have been considered in the preparation of the 2017/18 Annual Accounts.

The Comhairle is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside the terms of the
teachers' scheme. These costs are accounted for on a defined benefit basis. An estimate of £4.9m in respect of discretionary
unfunded pension awards has been included in the net pension liability in the balance sheet.

The Comhairle wholly owns Sgoiltean Ùra LLP, an arms length limited liability partnership responsible for the management of the
design, construction, facilities management and lifecycle maintenance of the schools to be built as part of the Western Isles
Schools Project. The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle (99.99%) and Sgoiltean Ùra Investments Ltd (0.01%), with the
latter being a company limited by shares having the Comhairle as sole share holder.

Although the Comhairle has an interest in Scotland Excel, the centre of procurement excellence for Scottish Local Authorities, the
entity has not been included in the group on the grounds of materiality.
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NOTE 39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/ASSETS

NOTE 40 TRUST FUNDS

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

118 Opening Balance 1 April 122
5 Income 1

(1) Expenditure (1)

122 Closing Balance 31 March 122

Balance Sheet 

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Tangible Fixed Assets
-                   Investments -                       

Current Assets
118 Short Term Deposits 120

4 Bank Deposits 2

122 Total Assets 122

Represented by :
122 Capital & Revenue Reserves 122

122 Net Worth 122

Only the undernoted trusts have closing values in excess of £10,000.

Value at 
31/03/17

 £'000

Value at 
31/03/18

£'000

48 Donald A Ferguson Bequest (Social Work - Ardseileach Residents) 49
28 W C Mackenzie Trust (for non-council projects in Stornoway) 28
30 Dr J L Robertson Bequest (for residents hardship) 30

106 107

The Comhairle acts as sole trustee for twelve educational, social welfare and miscellaneous trusts. They relate principally to
legacies left by individuals with Western Isles connections over a period of years. The balance held at 31 March 2018 was £122k
(2016/17 £122k). The income from the trusts is used to provide educational grants and prizes, comforts for the elderly,
handicapped and various community facilities. The funds are held in the Comhairle's Loans Fund and are included in the
Balance Sheet. 

Summary Income and Expenditure Account

The Comhairle acts as guarantor for up to £122k of loans advanced under the Fisheries Assistance and Business Loans
Schemes.  Guarantees issued after 2006 have been recognised on the balance sheet.

A decision of the Comhairle to award a contract to a private sector partner is the subject of a claim by a competitor for damages
in the Court of Session.  A hearing date has not yet been fixed.

The Comhairle is pursuing an action against the contractor for the Western Isles Schools Project in the Court of Session in the
sum of £340k. A hearing date has not yet been fixed.
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NOTE 41   NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit Risk

The assessment criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Comhairle are as detailed below:

Deposits Published credit ratings RBS-CnES Banker £5m
Credit default SWAPS £5m
Economic fundamentals £100m
Sovereign support mechanisms
Share Prices Local Authorities £5m

market sentiment and momentum.

Subjective Overlay

Amount at
31/03/18

£'000 £'000

Deposits with banks, building societies and local authorities 32,400 - 
Customers (council tax, non-domestic rates and other income) 10,843 3,058

31/03/17 31/03/18

£'000 £'000

Less than three months 473 1,473
Three to six months 524 694
Six months to one year 904 1,604
More than one year 4,526 5,342

6,427 9,113

The Comhairle's management of treasury risks actively works to minimise the Comhairle's exposure to the unpredictability of financial
markets and to protect the financial resources available to fund services. The Comhairle has fully adopted CIPFA's Code of Treasury
Management Practices and has written principles for overall risk management as well as written policies and procedures covering specific
areas such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Relevant factors used in analysis Maximum Investment

Other banks and building societies
Debt Management Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF)

uncollectibility

The Comhairle does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £9.1m of the £12m balance is past its due date for payment (a
significant portion of this relates to care charges debt, some of which is secured on property) . The past due amount can be analysed by
age as follows:

Credit risk arises from the short-term lending of surplus funds to banks, building societies and other local authorities as well as credit
exposures to the Comhairle's customers. In accordance with Investment Regulations issued by the Scottish Government and best
practice, the Comhairle's primary objective in relation to the investment of public funds remains the security of capital. The liquidity or
accessibility of the Comhairle's investments followed by the yields earned on the investments are important but are secondary
considerations. Institutions are independently assessed as sufficiently secure by the Comhairle's treasury advisors and deposits are
restricted to a prudent maximum amount for each institution.

The following analysis summarises the Comhairle's potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on past experience and current
market conditions. No credit limits were exceeded during the financial year and the Comhairle expects full repayment on the due date of
deposits placed with its counterparties.

Estimated maximum
exposure to default and

Corporate developments, news articles,
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Liquidity Risk

£'000

Less than one year 1,500
Between one and two years 3,505
Between two and five years 5,010
More than five years 130,525

140,540

Market Risk

£'000
Impact on tax-payer & rent-payers
Increase on interest payable on variable rate borrowings - 
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate lending (537)
Increase in government grant receivable for "loan charges" (150)

Net effect on Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account (687)

Other accounting presentational changes
A decrease in the "fair value" of fixed rate lending - 

35,015

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the changes being reversed.

Foreign Exchange Risk

NOTE 42  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Comhairle takes regular advice from its specialist treasury advisers and actively monitors changes in interest rates to inform
decisions on the lending of surplus funds, new borrowings and restructurings of existing borrowings.

Any potential for a financial impact on the Comhairle is also significantly limited by the Scottish Government's grant distribution
mechanism that automatically adjusts for changes in interest rates in the government grant support the Comhairle receives for "loan
charges".

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities in respect of borrowings and Trust Funds is as shown below. All trade and other payables are
assumed to be due within one year.

There have been no material events since the date of the Balance Sheet which necessitate revision to the figures in the financial
statements or notes, including contingent assets or liabilities.

The Comhairle has no significant assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, other than a Euro Bank Account with a balance
of £13k at 31 March 2018,  and thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

To illustrate the impact of changes in interest rates upon the Comhairle, the following table shows the financial effect if rates had been
1% higher at 31 March 2018, with all other variables held constant.

The Comhairle's main source of borrowing is the Treasury's Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that the Comhairle
will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. The Comhairle endeavours to ensure that a
significant proportion of its borrowing does not mature for repayment at any one time in the future, to reduce the financial impact or of re-
borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. This is achieved through a combination of prudent planning of new loans taken out
and, where it is economic to do so, making early repayments.

Changes in market interest rates influence the interest payable on borrowings and on interest receivable on surplus funds invested. For
example, a rise in interest rates would mean an increase in the interest charged on borrowing at variable rates and an increased cost to
the taxpayer. An increase in interest rates would also mean an increase in the income received on lending at variable rates and a
reduction in the cost for the taxpayer.

Changes in market rates also affect the notional "fair value" of lending and borrowing. For example, a rise in interest rates would
reduce the fair value of both lending and borrowing at fixed rates. Changes in the fair value of lending and borrowing do not impact
upon the taxpayer and are confined to prescribed presentational aspects in the accounts.

A decrease in the "fair value" of fixed rate borrowing

The Comhairle has a variety of strategies for managing the uncertainty of future interest rates and the financial impact on the
Comhairle.

It is the policy of the Comhairle to limit its exposure to variable rate borrowing to a maximum of 40% of what it borrows.

Where it is economically advantageous to do so, the Comhairle will consider the repayment and restructuring of fixed interest rate debt.
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INCOME ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

(12,713) Council Tax Levy and Contributions in lieu (13,348)

Less:
1,344 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 1,316
1,864 Other Discounts and Reductions 1,770

181 Write off of Uncollectable Debts and allowance for impairment 117

(9,324) Council Tax Income per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (10,145)

NON DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

(12,438) Gross Rates Levied and Contributions in Lieu (11,959)

Less:
4,279 Reliefs and Other Deductions 4,053

143 Write-off of Uncollectable Debts and allowance for impairment 23

(8,016) Net Non-Domestic Rate Income (7,883)

(327) Adjustment to Previous Years' National Non-Domestic Rates 95
72 Non-Domestic Rates Retained by Comhairle (BRIS) - 

(8,271) Contribution to Non-Domestic Rate Pool (7,788)

(8,020) Distribution from Non-Domestic Rate Pool (7,962)
(72) Non-Domestic Rates Retained by Comhairle (BRIS) - 

(8,092) Income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (7,962)

The Council Tax Income Account shows the gross income raised from council taxes levied and deductions made under
statute. The resultant net income is transferred to the Comhairle's Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Non-Domestic Rate Account is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to
maintain a separate Non-Domestic Rate Account. The statement shows the gross income from the rates and deductions
made under statute. The net income is paid to the Scottish Government as a contribution to the national non-domestic rate
pool.
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NATURE AND AMOUNT OF NON DOMESTIC RATE CHARGES

Relief available
2017/18

Combined rateable value of all business properties in Scotland:
Up to £15,000 100%
£15,001 - £18,000 50%
£18,001 - £35,000 * 25%

Analysis of Rateable Values 1 April 2017

Number Rateable
of Properties Value

£'000

Care Facilities 20 914
Telecommunication 27 957
Cultural 30 452
Education and Training 74 3,829
Garage and Petrol Stations 94 682
Health Medical 31 1,332
Hotels, boarding Houses etc. 596 2,516
Industrial including Factories and Warehouses 396 4,364
Leisure, Entertainment Caravans and Holiday Sites 117 1,029
Offices including Banks 210 3,052
Other 46 329
Petrochemical 2 21
Public Houses 8 199
Public Service Subjects 363 2,988
Quarries, Mines etc. 11 102
Religious 140 612
Shops 241 2,460
Sporting Subjects 49 562

2,455 26,400

Rates collected by the Comhairle are paid into the National Non-Domestic Rates Pool and the money is redistributed by the
Scottish Government according to need.

Non-Domestic Rates are a tax levied by local authorities on the occupiers of commercial property. The amount paid is determined
by the rateable value placed on the property by the Assessor, multiplied by the rate per pound (the "rate poundage"). The rate
poundage is set each year by the First Minister for Scotland. For 2017/18 the charge was 46.6 pence in the pound (48.4 pence in
2016/17). For properties with a rateable value of over £51,000 a supplement of 2.6 pence (£35,000 and 2.6 pence in 2016/17) in
the pound was added as per the Non-Domestic Rates (Levying) (Scotland) Regulations 2017, and this contributes towards the cost
of the Small Business Bonus Scheme.

The Small Business Bonus Scheme introduced on 1 April 2008 progressively reduces the rates burden for businesses with
properties of which the combined rateable value is £18,000 or less.  The relief rates for 2017/18 are detailed below:

* This will allow a business with 2 or more properties with a cumulative rateable value between £15,001 and £35,000 to qualify for relief at 25% on
individual properties with a rateable value up to £18,000.
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NATURE OF THE COUNCIL TAX CHARGE

Calculation of the Council Tax Base

DISABLED
2016/17 A A B C D E F G H 2017/18

14,691 Properties 4796 3844 2833 1762 1273 188 33 5 14,734
798 Exemptions 374 209 134 44 29 4 1 1 796

91 Disabled Relief 15 11 19 18 15 2 1 81
91 Effective Disabled 15 11 19 18 15 2 1 81

4,987 Discounts (25%) 8 2169 1414 844 408 239 31 5 5,118
1,097 Discounts (50%) 563 448 228 94 56 1 1 1 1,392
1,324 Council Tax Reduction 4 843 472 237 63 29 1 1,649

10,776 Total equivalent 9 2751 2594 2136 1503 1114 174 29 4 10,314

Ratio 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 473/360 583/360 705/360 882/360

9,240 Band D equivalents 5 1834 2018 1899 1503 1464 283 57 10 9,073
9 Contributions in lieu 4

9,249 9,077

(163) Bad Debt Provision (169)

9,086 Council Tax Base 8,908

Number of Effective Properties per Band and Council Tax Levels 2017/18

Band

A (Disabled) 9
A 2,751
B 2,594
C 2,136
D 1,503
E 1,114
F 174
G 29
H 4

10,314

585.96
703.15
820.34
935.53

2,584.06

1,713.92
1,385.78

2,065.49

£Properties

Properties which fulfil certain criteria are exempt from Council Tax and no payments are due. Second homes and long-term empty
properties are charged 90% (40% being paid over to Registered Social Landlords for investment in housing related projects). The
Council Tax is reduced by 25% where a dwelling has only one occupant and by 50% if the property is empty. If a property has
features which meet the needs of a disabled occupant then relief is given by a reduction of one band.

1,054.72
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

General 
Fund

Capital 
Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Comhairle 
Reserves

Share of 
Reserves of 

Associates & 
Subsidiaries

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2017 23,164 106 320 217 23,807 55,380 79,187 (54) 79,133

Movement in Reserves during 
2016/17

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (3,525) -            -             -           (3,525) 85,203 81,678 2,083 83,761

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulation 1,937 0 2,139 75 4,151 (4,151) -            -                -           

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Year (1,588) 0 2,139 75 626 81,052 81,678 2,083 83,761

Balance at 31 March 2018 21,576 106 2,459 292 24,433 136,432 160,865 2,029 162,894

2016/17 Comparative Figures 
General 

Fund
Capital 

Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Comhairle 
Reserves

Share of 
Reserves of 

Associates & 
Subsidiaries

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2016 21,720 106 3,138 45 25,009 93,582 118,591 (1,010) 117,581

Movement in Reserves during 
2015/16

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (7,942) -            -             -           (7,942) (31,462) (39,404) 956 (38,448)

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulation 9,386 -            (2,818) 172 6,740 (6,740) -            -                -           

Net Increase/Decrease in Year 1,444 0 (2,818) 172 (1,202) (38,202) (39,404) 956 (38,448)

Balance at 31 March 2017 23,164 106 320 217 23,807 55,380 79,187 (54) 79,133

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Comhairle and its share of the reserves of associates and
subsidiaries, analysed into "usable reserves" (those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or
(Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund for council tax setting
purposes. The net increase/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Comhairle.

2017/18
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GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 Service £'000 £'000 £'000

50,836 (4,630) 46,206 Education and Children's Services 50,716 (5,012) 45,704

17,366 (6,688) 10,678 Development 13,601 (6,053) 7,548

48,958 (25,110) 23,848 Health and Social Care 49,410 (27,536) 21,874

4,807 (727) 4,080 Chief Executive's 4,792 (751) 4,041

12,271 (6,327) 5,944 Finance and Corporate Resources 11,572 (5,671) 5,901

24,371 (5,453) 18,918 Technical Services 26,925 (5,695) 21,230

158,609 (48,935) 109,674 Cost of Services 157,016 (50,718) 106,298

2,004 -           2,004 Other Operating Expenditure (Note 8) 188 -            188

11,530 (273) 11,257 Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (Note 9) 12,235 (249) 11,986

-          (114,993) (114,993) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (Note 10) -           (114,947) (114,947)

172,143 (164,201) 7,942 Surplus on Provision of Services 169,439 (165,914) 3,525

(1,479) Share of Operating Results of Associates (1,398)

6,463 Group (Surplus)/Deficit 2,127

(13,909) Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (4,992)

45,371
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Pension Fund Assets and 
Liabilities (80,211)

523
Share of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure of 
Associates (Note G3) (685)

31,985 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (85,888)

38,448 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (83,761)

2016/17 2017/18

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. It also shows the Comhairle's share of the operating results of associates and
subsidiaries. The Comhairle raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

£'000 £'000

309,455 Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 11) 313,711
2,092 Heritage Assets (Note 12) 2,101

376 Intangible Assets (Note 13) 378
271 Long Term Investments 257
754 Long Term Debtors (Note 14) 1,119
-                  Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures 2,029

Long Term Assets 319,595

24,061 Short Term Investments 25,577
1,610 Assets Held for Sale (Note 18) 1,305

996 Inventories 1,041
10,785 Short Term Debtors (Note 16) 12,908

8,555 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 17) 13,890

Current Assets 54,721

(4,500) Short Term Borrowing (Note 15) (3,148)
(13,549) Short Term Creditors (Note 19) (18,532)

(37) Provisions (Note 20) (7)

Current Liabilities (21,687)

(54) Liabilities in Associates and Joint Ventures -                  
(140,540) Long Term Borrowing (Note 15) (139,042)

(1,420) Other Long Term Liabilities (Note 32) (1,396)
(1,209) Long Term Provision (Note 20) (929)

(118,513) Pension Liability (Note 36) (48,368)

Long Term Liabilities (189,735)

Net Assets 162,894

23,807 Comhairle Usable Reserves 24,433

55,380 Comhairle Unusable Reserves (Note 21) 136,432

(54) Share of Reserves of Associates and Joint Ventures 2,029

Total Reserves 162,894

31/03/2017

£'000

312,948

46,007

(18,086)

(261,736)

79,133

79,133

The Group Balance Sheet shows the value at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Comhairle and
its share of the assets and liabilities of its associates and subsidiaries. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the
reserves, which are reported in two categories. Usable reserves, which may be used to provide services (subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use, for example, the Capital Receipts Reserve may only
be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt), and unusable reserves which cannot be used to fund services. The latter
includes reserves that hold unrealisable gains and losses, for example the Revaluation Reserve, where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement line "adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation".

24 September 2018

31/03/2018

Robert Emmott BSc CPFA
Director of Finance and Corporate Resources

The unaudited Accounts were issued on 19 June 2018 and the audited Accounts were authorised for issue on 24 September 2018.
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000 

(6,463) Net surplus or ( deficit) on the provision of services (2,127)

24,256 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 20,481

17,793 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 18,354

(29,282) Investing Activities (10,144)

(1,527) Financing Activities (2,875)

(13,016) Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,335

21,571 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 8,555

8,555 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 13,890

(13,016) 5,335

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

(7,942) Surplus/(Deficit) on Single Entity I & E Account for Year (3,525)

-                 Less:   Adjustment for transactions with other Group entities -                     

(7,942) (Surplus)/Deficit in Group CI & E  Attributable to Comhairle (3,525)

1,479 Add:  Deficit in Group I & E Account attributable to Associates 1,398

(6,463) Surplus for the Year on the Group CI & E Statement (2,127)

The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Comhairle's group during the reporting
period. The statement shows how these are generated and used, by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of
the Comhairle are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing activities represent
the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to future service delivery.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.
borrowing) to the Comhairle. The Comhairle's share of the cash flows of its associates is disregarded for the purposes of this
statement as the group reserves are all unusable and cannot be used to fund services.

RECONCILIATION OF THE SINGLE ENTITY SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR TO THE GROUP SURPLUS OR
DEFICIT
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NOTE G1   DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

NOTE G2   COMBINING ENTITIES

2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

575 Gross Income 559
58 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 92

111 Current Assets 91
(87) Short Term Liabilities (67)

(1,616) Pension Liability (1,023)

Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board administers the Rating and Council Tax valuation service and Electoral
Registration on behalf of The Highland Council and Comhairle nan Eilean Siar. Operational control of the service lies with the
Assessor who receives administrative, financial and computing support from The Highland Council. During 2017/18 the
Comhairle contributed £0.305m or 10.7% of the Board's running costs. Other than a small General Fund balance and the
Pension Liability, of which the Comhairle's share is £1.616m, the Board has no other fixed assets or reserves on the Balance
Sheet.

The following table gives details of the Group’s share of the Board’s finances, based on the Comhairle’s 20% share.

Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP) is an arms length limited liability partnership, responsible for the management of the design,
construction, facilities management and lifecycle maintenance of the schools to be built as part of the Western Isles Schools
Project. The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle (99.99%) and Sgoiltean Ùra Investments Ltd (0.01%), with the latter
being a company limited by shares having the Comhairle as sole share holder.

Although the Comhairle has an interest in Scotland Excel, the centre of procurement expertise for Scottish Local Authorities, the
entity has not been included in the group on the grounds of materiality.

With the building works on the Schools Project completed in 2013, SULLP effectively ceased trading on 31 March 2013 and
consequently their were no transactions through the Accounts during 2017/18. The process to novate the Schools Project
contracts and transfer the assets and liabilities of SULLP to the Comhairle has been ongoing for some time but due to delays in
the legal process, this has not yet been finalised. Dormant accounts are in the process of being filed with Companies House.

The accounting period for both entities is 31 March 2018. Copies of the Valuation Board accounts are available from the
Director of Finance, Highland Council, Glenurquhart Road, Inverness, IV3 5NX and those for Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean Siar
from the Chief Officer, Health and Social Care, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1 2BW.

The code of practice on Local Authority Accounting requires local authorities to consider their interest in other organisations,
including private companies and other statutory bodies. Where the interest is deemed to be material, the authority is required to
prepare a set of Group Accounts.

The Comhairle has a "controlling interest" in Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP) and this company has been included in the Group
Accounts  as a subsidiary.

The accounting period for this entity is 31 March 2018 and copies of the individual accounts are available from Sgoiltean Ùra
LLP, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1 2BW.

For the purposes of consolidation and incorporation in the Group Accounts, recognition has been made of the Comhairle’s
interest in the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation as an Associate of the Comhairle. Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean Siar,
the Integration Joint Board for health and social care services has been recognised as a Joint Venture.

HIGHLAND AND WESTERN ISLES JOINT VALUATION BOARD
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2016/17 2017/18
£'000 £'000

33,841 Gross Income 35,311
(1,537) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (1,490)
1,540 Current Assets 3,027

NOTE G3   NATURE OF COMBINATION

NOTE G4   FINANCIAL IMPACT OF CONSOLIDATION

NOTE G5   COMHAIRLE SHARE OF GROUP CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTE G6   GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group Accounts are prepared in accordance with the policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean Siar is the Integration Joint Board established to deliver health and social care services for Comhairle
nan Eilean Siar and NHS Western Isles. The integration scheme was agreed by the Scottish Parliament on 24 September 2015 and
the Board was formally established on 1 April 2016. During the year the Comhairle contributed £19.9m, representing 34% of the
Board's running costs. The Board does not hold any cash or other assets, other than the £6.1m surplus generated over the two
years,  which has been transferred to a reserve for use in future years.

The Comhairle is deemed to have an interest in its associates by virtue of its ability to direct operating and financial policies in
conjunction and with the consent of the other participants in the entity. Associates and Joint Ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, whereby an opening investment has been recognised in the Balance Sheet and adjusted in each year for the
Comhairle's share of the operating results. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the Group Accounts on a line by line basis.

The effect of including the associates and the subsidiary on the Balance Sheet is to increase net worth by £2.029m, as a result of
inclusion of a share of the Integration Joint Board's reserves, which have offset the Valuation Joint Board's pension liability.

The Contingent Liabilities of the Comhairle are detailed in Note 39. Neither the Valuation Joint Board or Cùram is Slàinte nan Eilean
Siar have identified any  contingent liabilities.

The following table gives details of the Group’s share of the Board’s finances, based on the Comhairle’s 50% share of the Joint
Venture.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF COMHAIRLE NAN EILEAN SIAR AND THE 
ACCOUNTS COMMISSION 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose.  In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice approved 
by the Accounts Commission, I do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion on financial statements 
I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and its group for 
the year ended 31 March 2018 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.  The financial statements 
comprise the group and council-only Movement in Reserves Statements, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statements, Balance Sheets, and Cash Flow Statements, the council-only Council Tax Income Account, and the Non 
Domestic Rate Income Account, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the 2017/18 Code). 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2017/18 Code of the state of affairs of the
Comhairle and its group as at 31 March 2018 and of the income and expenditure of the Comhairle and its group
for the year then ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and
adapted by the 2017/18 Code; and

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, The
Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.

Basis for opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)). My 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of my report. I am independent of the Comhairle and its group in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting 
Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I 
believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require me to report to you 
where: 

 the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

 the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Comhairle's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Responsibilities of the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources and Audit and Scrutiny Committee for the 
financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources is 
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial 
reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources is responsible for assessing the 
Comhairle's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 

The Audit and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
My objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report. 
 
Other information in the annual accounts 
The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources is responsible for the other information in the annual accounts. The 
other information comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of the Remuneration 
Report, and my auditor’s report thereon.  My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and 
I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission to 
the extent explicitly stated later in this report. 
 
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read all the other information in the annual 
accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether there is a material misstatement 
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work I have performed, I 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to 
report in this regard. 
 
REPORT ON OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
Opinions on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission 
In my opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in accordance with The Local 
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 
 
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, 

 the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with 
statutory guidance issued under the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003; and 

 the information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016). 

 
Matters on which I am required to report by exception 
I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in agreement with the 
accounting records; or 

 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; or 

 there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective. 
 
 
I have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Howarth ACMA CGMA 
Audit Director 
Audit Scotland 
4th Floor, South Suite  
The Athenaeum Building  
8 Nelson Mandela Place 
Glasgow 
G2 1BT 
 
25 September 2018 
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